
PRE-MEETING AGENDA

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL

CITY HALL PRE-COUNCIL ROOM (A106)
56 CHURCH STREET

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213

JULY 11,2016 6:00 PM

1. Smoke-Free Ordinance- Dr. Dale Wisely of the Mountain Brook School System and
Charlene White of the Jefferson County Health Dept. (See attached information.)

2. Cell Phone free zone around schools ordinance-Dale Wisely of the Mountain Brook
School system. (See attached information.)

3. Executive Session



Ordinance NO.

Model Ordinance Prohibiting Smoking in
All Workplaces and Public Places

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of finds that numerous studies have
shown that (1) secondhand smoke exposure causes disease and premature death in
children and adults who do not smoke; (2) children exposed to secondhand smoke are
at an increased risk for sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS), acute respiratory
problems, ear infections, and asthma attacks, and that smoking by parents causes
respiratory symptoms and slows lung growth in their children; (3) even occasional
exposure of adults to secondhand smoke has immediate adverse effects on the
cardiovascular system and causes coronary heart disease and lung cancer; (4) there is
no risk-free level of exposure to secondhand smoke; (5) establishing smokefree
workplaces Is the only effective way to ensure that secondhand smoke exposure does
not occur in the workplace, because ventilation and other air cleaning technologies
cannot completely control for exposure of nonsmokers to secondhand smoke; and (6)
evidence from peer-reviewed studies shows that smokefree policies and laws do not
have an adverse economic impact on the hospitality industry.'

WHEREAS, the Council finds that studies have shown that residual tobacco
contamination, or"thirdhand smoke," from cigarettes, cigars, and other tobacco products
is left behind after smoking occurs and builds up on surfaces and furnishings. This
residue can linger in spaces long after smoking has ceased and continue to expose
people to tobacco toxins. Sticky, highly toxic particulate matter, including nicotine, can
cling to walls and ceilings. Gases can be absorbed into carpets, draperies, and other
upholsteries, and then be reemitted (off-gassed) back into the air and recombine to form
harmful compounds." Tobacco residue is noticeably present in dust throughout places
where smoking has occurred.'" Given the rapid sorption and persistence of high levels of
residual nicotine from tobacco smoke on indoor surfaces, including clothing and human
skin, this recently identified process represents an unappreciated health hazard through
dermal exposure, dust inhalation, and ingestion.'^

WHEREAS, the Council finds that unregulated high-tech smoking devices, commonly
referred to as electronic cigarettes, or "e-cigarettes," closely resemble and purposefully
mimic the act of smoking by having users inhale vaporized liquid nicotine created by
heat through an electronic ignition system. After testing a number of electronic cigarettes
from two leading manufacturers, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) determined
that various samples tested contained not only nicotine but also detectable levels of
known carcinogens and toxic chemicals, including tobacco-specific nitrosamines and
diethylene glycol, a toxic chemical used in antifreeze. The FDA's testing also suggested
that "quality control processes used to manufacture these products are inconsistent or
non-existent."" According to a more recent study, electronic cigarette emissions are
made up of a high concentration of ultrafine particles, and the particle concentration is
higher than in conventional tobacco cigarette smoke."' Electronic cigarettes produce an
aerosol or vapor of undetermined and potentially harmful substances, which may appear
similar to the smoke emitted by traditional tobacco products. Their use in workplaces
and public places where smoking of traditional tobacco products is prohibited creates
concern and confusion and leads to difficulties in enforcing the smoking prohibitions.



WHEREAS, the Coundl finds that the Society of Actuaries has determined that
secondhand smoke costs the U.S. economy roughly $10 billion a year: $5 billion in
estimated medical costs associated with secondhand smoke exposure and $4.6 billion in
lost productivity.^"

WHEREAS, the Council finds that numerous economic analyses examining restaurant
and hotel receipts and controlling for economic variables have shown either no
difference or a positive economic impact after enactment of laws requiring workplaces to
be smokefree. Creation of smokefree workplaces is sound economic policy and provides
the maximum level of employee health and safety.^'"

WHEREAS, the Council finds that there is no legal or constitutional "right to smoke.""*
Business owners have no legal or constitutional right to expose their employees and
customers to the toxic chemicals in secondhand smoke. On the contrary, employers
have a common law duty to provide their workers with a workplace that is not
unreasonably dangerous.*

WHEREAS, the Council finds that smoking is a potential cause of fires; cigarette and
cigar bums and ash stains on merchandise and fixtures causes economic damage to
businesses.*"

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the City of ^finds and declares that the
purposes of this ordinance are (1) to protect the public health and welfare by prohibiting
smoking in public places and places of employment; and (2) to guarantee the right of
nonsmokers to breathe smokefree air, and to recognize that the need to breathe
smokefree air shall have priority over the desire to smoke.

Section 1. Definitions

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this Article, shall be construed as
defined in this Section:

A. "Bar" means an establishment that is devoted to the serving of alcoholic
beverages for consumption by guests on the premises and in which the serving
of food is only incidental to the consumption of those beverages, including but
not limited to, taverns, nightclubs, cocktail lounges, and cabarets.

B. "Business" means a sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture, corporation, or
other business entity, either for-profit or not-for-profit, including retail
establishments where goods or services are sold; professional corporations and
other entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering, architectural, or other
professional services are delivered; and private clubs.

C. "Cigar Baf means a licensed establishment in which the primary activity is the
sale, manufacture or promotion of cigars or cigar accessories and in which the
sale of the other products is merely incidental.

D. "Electronic Smoking Device" means any product containing or delivering nicotine
or any other substance intended for human consumption that can be used by a
person to simulate smoking through inhalation of vapor or aerosol from the



product. The term includes any such device, whether manufactured, distributed,
marketed, or sold as an e-cigarette, e-clgar, e-pipe, e-hookah, or vape pen, or
under any other product name or descriptor.

E. "Employee" means a person who is employed by an employer in consideration
for direct or indirect monetary wages or profit, and a person who volunteers his or
her services for a non-profit entity.

F. "Employer" means a person, business, partnership, association, corporation,
including a municipal corporation, trust, or non-profit entity that employs the
services of one or more individual persons.

G. "Enclosed Area" means all space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded
on at least two sides by walls, doorways, or windows, whether open or closed. A
wall includes any retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier,
whether temporary or permanent and whether or not containing openings of any
kind.

H. "Health Care Facility" means an office or institution providing care or treatment of
diseases, whether physical, mental, or emotional, or other medical, physiological,
or psychological conditions, including but not limited to, hospitals, rehabilitation
hospitals or other clinics, including weight control clinics, nursing homes, long-
term care facilities, homes for the aging or chronically ill, laboratories, and offices
of surgeons, chiropractors, physical therapists, physicians, psychiatrists, dentists,
and all specialists within these professions. This definition shall include all waiting
rooms, hallways, private rooms, semiprivate rooms, and wards within health care
facilities.

I. "Hookah" means a water pipe and any associated products and devices which
are used to produce fumes, smoke, and/or vapor from the burning of material
including, but not limited to, tobacco, shisha, or other plant matter.

J. "Place of Employment" means an area under the control of a public or private
employer, including, but not limited to, work areas, private offices, employee
lounges, restrooms, conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee
cafeterias, hallways, construction sites, temporary offices, and vehicles. A private
residence is not a "place of employment" unless it is used as a child care, adult
day care, or health care facility.

K. "Playground" means any park or recreational area designed in part to be used by
children that has play or sports equipment installed or that has been designated
or landscaped for play or sports activities, or any similar facility located on public
or private school grounds or on [City or County] grounds.

L. "Private Club" means an organization, whether incorporated or not, which is the
owner, lessee, or occupant of a building or portion thereof used exclusively for
club purposes at all times, which is operated solely for a recreational, fraternal,
social, patriotic, political, benevolent, or athletic purpose, but not for pecuniary
gain, and which only sells alcoholic beverages incidental to its operation. The
affairs and management of the organization are conducted by a board of
directors, executive committee, or similar body chosen by the members at an



annual meeting. The organization has established bylaws and/or a constitution to
govern its activities. The organization has been granted an exemption from the
payment of federal income tax as a club under 26 U.S.C. Section 501.

M. "Public Event" means an event which is open to and may be attended by the
general public, including but not limited to, such events as concerts, fairs,
farmers' markets, festivals, parades, performances, and other exhibitions,
regardless of any fee or age requirement.

N. "Public Place" means an area to which the public is invited or in which the public
is permitted, including but not limited to, banks, bars, educational facilities,
gambling facilities, health care facilities, hotels and motels, laundromats, parking
structures, public transportation vehicles and facilities, reception areas,
restaurants, retail food production and marketing establishments, retail service
establishments, retail stores, shopping malls, sports arenas, theaters, and
waiting rooms. A private residence is not a "public place" unless It Is used as a
child care, adult day care, or health care facility.

O. "Recreational Area" means any public or private area open to the public for
recreational purposes, whether or not any fee for admission is charged, including
but not limited to, amusement parks, athletic fields, beaches, fairgrounds,
gardens, golf courses, parks, plazas, skate parks, swimming pools, trails, and
zoos.

P. "Restaurant" means an eating establishment, including but not limited to, coffee
shops, cafeterias, sandwich stands, and private and public school cafeterias,
which gives or offers for sale food to the public, guests, or employees, as well as
kitchens and catering facilities in which food is prepared on the premises for
serving elsewhere. The term "restaurant" shall include a bar area within the
restaurant.

Q. "Service Line" means an indoor or outdoor line in which one (1) or more persons
are waiting for or receiving service of any kind, whether or not the service
involves the exchange of money, including but not limited to, ATM lines, concert
lines, food vendor iines, movie ticket lines, and sporting event lines.

R. "Shopping Mall" means an enclosed or unenclosed public walkway or hall area
that serves to connect retail or professional establishments.

S. "Smoking" means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated
cigar, cigarette, or pipe, or any other lighted or heated tobacco or plant product
intended for inhalation, including hookahs and marijuana, whether natural or
synthetic, in any manner or in any form. "Smoking" also includes the use of an
electronic smoking device which creates an aerosol or vapor, in any manner or in
any form, or the use of any oral smoking device for the purpose of circumventing
the prohibition of smoking in this Article.

T. "Sports Arena" means a place where people assemble to engage in physical
exercise, participate in athletic competition, or witness sports or other events,
including sports pavilions, stadiums, gymnasiums, health spas, boxing arenas,
swimming pools, roller and ice rinks, and bowling alleys.



Section 2. Application of Article to [City-Owned or County-Owned]
Facilities and Property

All enclosed areas, including buildings and vehicles owned, leased, or operated by the
[City or County] of , as well as all outdoor property adjacent to such

buildings and under the control of the [City or County], shall be subject to the
provisions of this Section.

Section 3. Prohibition of Smoking in Enclosed Public Places

Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed public places within the [City or
County] of , including but not limited to, the following places:

A. Aquariums, galleries, libraries, and museums.

B. Areas available to the general public in businesses and non-profit entities
patronized by the public, including but not limited to, banks, laundromats,
professional offices, and retail service establishments.

C. Bars.

D. Bingo facilities.

E. Child care and adult day care facilities.

F. Convention facilities.

G. Educational facilities, both public and private.

H. Elevators.

I. Gambling facilities.

J. Health care facilities.

K. Hotels and motels.

L. Lobbies, hallways, and other common areas in apartment buildings,
condominiums, trailer parks, retirement facilities, nursing homes, and other
multiple-unit residential facilities.

M. Parking structures.

N. Polling places.



O. Public transportation vehicles, including buses and taxicabs, under the authority
of the [City or County], and ticket, boarding, and waiting areas of
public transportation facilities, including bus, train, and airport facilities.

P. Restaurants.

Q. Restrooms, lobbies, reception areas, hallways, and other common-use areas.

R. Retail stores.

S. Rooms, chambers, places of meeting or public assembly, including school
buildings, under the control of an agency, board, commission, committee or
council of the [City or County] or a political subdivision of the State, to
the extent the place is subject to the jurisdiction of the [City or County].

T. Service lines.

U. Shopping malls.

V. Sports arenas, including enclosed places in outdoor arenas.

W. Theaters and other facilities primarily used for exhibiting motion pictures, stage
dramas, lectures, musical recitals, or other similar performances.

X. Private clubs.

Section 4. Prohibition of Smoking in Enclosed Places of Employment

A. Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed areas of places of employment
without exception. This includes, without limitation, common work areas,
auditoriums, classrooms, conference and meeting rooms, private offices,
elevators, hallways, medical facilities, cafeterias, employee lounges, stairs,
restrooms, vehicles, and all other enclosed facilities.

Section 4. Prohibition of Smoking in Enclosed Residential Facilities

Smoking shall be prohibited in the following enclosed residential facilities;

A. All private and semi-private rooms in nursing homes.

B. All hotel and motel guest rooms.



Section 5. Prohibition of Smoking in Outdoor Pubiic Places

Smoking shall be prohibited in the following outdoor places:

A. In all outdoor stadiums, and amphitheaters. Smoking shall also be prohibited in,
and within 20 feet of, bleachers and grandstands for use by spectators at
sporting and other public events.

B. In, and within 20 feet of, all outdoor playgrounds

C. In, and within 20 feet of, all outdoor public events.

D. In, and within 20 feet of, all outdoor public transportation stations, platforms, and
shelters under the authority of the [City or County].

E. In all outdoor service lines, including lines in which service is obtained by
persons in vehicles, such as service that is provided by bank tellers, parking lot
attendants, and toll takers. In lines in which service is obtained by persons in
vehicles, smoking is prohibited by both pedestrians and persons in vehicles, but
only within 20 feet of the point of service.

F. In outdoor common areas of apartment buildings, condominiums, trailer parks,
retirement facilities, nursing homes, and other multiple-unit residential facilities,
except in designated smoking areas, not to exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of
the total outdoor common area, which must be located at least 20 feet outside
entrances, operable windows, and ventilation systems of enclosed areas where
smoking is prohibited.

Section 6. Prohibition of Smoking in Outdoor Places of Employment

A. Smoking shall be prohibited in all outdoor places of employment where two or
more employees are required to be In the course of their employment. This
includes, without limitation, work areas, construction sites, temporary offices such
as trailers, restroom facilities, and vehicles.

Section 7. Where Smoking Not Regulated

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article to the contrary, smoking shall not be
prohibited in:

A. Private residences, unless used as a childcare, adult day care, or health care
facility.

B. Cigar bar as defined in Section 1 (c). Cigar bars must satisfy all of the following:
1. Generates 80 (eighty) percent or more of its quarterly gross revenue from

the sale of cigars;
2. Has a humidor on the premises and;
3. Does not allow individuals under the age of 19 to enter the premises.



Section 8. Declaration of Establishment or Outdoor Area as Nonsmoking

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Article, an owner, operator, manager, or
other person in control of an establishment, facility, or outdoor area may declare that
entire establishment, facility, or outdoor area as a nonsmoking place. Smoking shall be
prohibited in any place in which a sign conforming to the requirements of Section
1012(A) is posted

Section 9. Posting of Signs and Removal of Ashtrays

The owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a place of employment,
public place, private club, or residential facility where smoking is prohibited by this Article
shall:

A. Clearly and conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs or the international "No
Smoking" symbol (consisting of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette
enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across it) in that place.

B. Clearly and conspicuously post at every entrance to that place a sign stating that
smoking is prohibited.

C. Clearly and conspicuously post on every vehicle that constitutes a place of
employment under this Article at least one sign, visible from the exterior of the
vehicle, stating that smoking is prohibited.

D. Remove all ashtrays from any area where smoking is prohibited by this Article,
except for ashtrays displayed for sale and not for use on the premises.

Section 10. Nonretaliation: Nonwaiver of Rights

A. No person or employer shall discharge, refuse to hire, or in any manner retaliate
against an employee, applicant for employment, customer, or resident of a
multiple-unit residential facility because that employee, applicant, customer, or
resident exercises any rights afforded by this Section or reports or attempts to
prosecute a violation of this Section. Notwithstanding Section 12, violation of this
provision shall be a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed $1000 for
each violation.

B. An employee who works in a setting where an employer allows smoking does not
waive or otherwise surrender any legal rights the employee may have against the
employer or any other party.

Sec. 11. Enforcement

A. This Section shall be enforced by the [City Manager or County
Administrator] or an authorized designee.



B. Notice of the provisions of this Section shall be given to ail applicants for a
business license in the [City or County] of .

C. Any citizen who desires to register a complaint under this Section may initiate
enforcement with the [Department of Health or City Manager or
County Administrator).

D. The Health Department, Fire Department, or their designees shall, while an
establishment is undergoing otherwise mandated inspections, inspect for
compliance with this Section.

E. An owner, manager, operator, or employee of an area regulated by this Section
shall direct a person who is smoking in violation of this Section to extinguish or
turn off the product being smoked. If the person does not stop smoking, the
owner, manager, operator, or employee shall refuse service and shall
immediately ask the person to leave the premises. If the person in violation
refuses to leave the premises, the owner, manager, operator, or employee shall
contact a law enforcement agency.

F. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, an employee or private
citizen may bring legal action to enforce this Section.

G. in addition to the remedies provided by the provisions of this Section, the
[City Manager or County Administrator] or any person aggrieved by

the failure of the owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public
place or a place of employment to comply with the provisions of this Article may
apply for injunctive relief to enforce those provisions in any court of competent
jurisdiction.

Section 12. Violations and Penalties

A. A person who smokes in an area where smoking is prohibited by the provisions
of this Article shall be guilty of an infraction, punishable by a fine not exceeding
fifty dollars ($50).

B. Except as otherwise provided in Section 1013(A), a person who owns, manages,
operates, or otherwise controls a public place or place of employment and who
fails to comply with the provisions of this Article shall be guilty of an infraction,
punishable by:

1. A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation.

2. A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation
within one (1) year.

3. A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional
violation within one (1) year.

C. In addition to the fines established by this Section, violation of this Section by a
person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls a public place or



place of employment may result in the suspension or revocation of any permit or
license issued to the person for the premises on which the violation occurred.

D. Violation of this Section is hereby declared to be a public nuisance, which may
be abated by the [City Manager or County Administrator] by
restraining order, preliminary and permanent injunction, or other means provided
for by law, and the [City or County] may take action to recover the
costs of the nuisance abatement.

E. Each day on which a violation of this Section occurs shall be considered a
separate and distinct violation.

Section 13. Public Education

The [City of] shall engage in a continuing program to explain and clarify the
purposes and requirements of this Section to citizens affected by it, and to guide owners,
operators, and managers in their compliance with it. The program may include
publication of a brochure for affected businesses and individuals explaining the
provisions of this ordinance.

Section 14. Governmental Agency Cooperation

The [City Manager or County Administrator] shall annually request other
governmental and educational agencies having facilities within the [City or
County] to establish local operating procedures in cooperation and compliance with this
Section. This includes urging all Federal, State, [County or City], and School
District agencies to update their existing smoking control regulations to be consistent
with the current health findings regarding secondhand smoke.

Section 15. Other Applicable Laws

This Section shall not be interpreted or construed to permit smoking where it is
otherwise restricted by other applicable laws.

Sec. 16. Liberal Construction

This Article shall be liberally construed so as to further its purposes.

Sec. 17. Severability

If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Article or the application thereof
to any person or circumstances shall be held invalid, that invalidity shall not affect the
other provisions of this Article which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this Article are declared to be severable.

10



Sec. 18. Effective Date

This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days from and after the date of its adoption.

' U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. The Health Consequences of Involuntary Exposure to
TobaccoSmoke:AReportofthe Surgeon General. U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention, National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health

Promotion, Office on Smoking and Health, 2006.

" Singer, B.C.; Hodgson, A.T.; Nazaroff, W.W., "Effect of sorption on exposures to organic gases from
environmental tobacco smoke (ETS)," Proceedings: Indoor Air2002, 2002.
Matt, G.E.; Quintana, P.J.E.; Hovell, M.F.; Bernert, J.T.; Song, S.; Novianti, N.; Juarez, T.; Floro, J.;

Gehrman, C; Garcia, M.; Larson, S., "Households contaminated by environmental tobacco smoke: sources

of infant exposures," Tobacco Control 13(1): 29-37, March 2004.

Sleiman, M.; Gundel, LA.; Pankow, J.F.; Jacob III, P.; Singer, B.C.; Destaillats, H., "Formation of
carcinogens indoors by surface-mediated reactions of nicotine with nitrous acid, leading to potential
thirdhand smoke hazards," Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences of the United States of
America (PNAS) 107(15): 6576-6581, February 8,2010.
^ [n.a.J, "Summary of results: laboratory analysis of electronic cigarettes conducted by FDA," Food and
Drug Administration (FDA), July 22,

2009; httD://www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/PublicHealthFocus/ucml73146.htm Accessed on: October 22,

2009.

Fuoco, F.C.; Buonanno, G.; Stabile, L.; Vigo, P., "Influential parameters on particle concentration and size
distribution in the mainstream of e-ciearettes." Environmental Pollution 184:523-529, January 2014.

Behan, D.F.; Eriksen, M.P.; Lin, Y., "Economic Effects of Environmental Tobacco Smoke," Society of

Actuaries, March 31, 2005.

Glantz, S.A. & Smith, L, "The effect of ordinances requiring smokefree restaurants on restaurant sales
in the United States." American Journal of Public Health, 87:1687-1693,1997; Colman, R.; Urbonas, C.M.,
"The economic impact of smoke-free workplaces: an assessment for Nova Scotia, prepared for Tobacco
Control Unit, Nova Scotia Department of Health," GPI Atlantic, September 2001.
'* Graff, S.K., "There is No Constitutional Right to Smoke: 2008," Tobacco Control Legal Consortium, 2d
edition, 2008.

* Graff, S.K.; Zellers, L., "Workplace Smoking: Options for Employees and Legal Risks for Employers,''
Tobacco Control Legal Consortium, 2008.

"The high price of cigarette smoking," Business & Health 15(8), Supplement A: 6-9, August 1997.

11



I
r^-

Analysis:

City of Mountain Brook SmokeFree Air Ordinance
Enacted in 2005

Background

In 2005, Mountain Brook took a stand against exposure to secondhand smoke by providing
protections in some public areas and places of emplojinent- Since then, multiple studies,
including the 2010 Report from the U.S. Surgeon General, have concluded that there is no safe
level of exposure to secondhand smoke and that the only effecti\'e way to protect the population
from the harmful effects of exposure to secondhand smoke is to implement lOO^o anoketree
en\ironments. In addition, new tobacco products such as smokeless tobacco and e-cigareites
ha\ e flooded the market and are seiving as gateways to nicotine and other drug addictions.

What are the major gaps in the current smokefree ordinance?
•  It does not include a clear list of establishments where smoking is prohibited.

•  Includes multiple exemptions such as:

o Allowing smoking in designated rooms in hotels.
o Smoking is allowed in any establishment licensed to sell alcoholic beverages for

consumption by patrons on the premises, for which, in the usual course of
business alcoholic beverage sales constitute more than 40% of the total revenues;^
provided, however, that said exception shall only apply after 4:00 p.m. on any
business day.

o Smoking is allowed in retail tobacco stores.
o Smoking is allowed at private functions in public places and in private clubs.

•  It allows for any business establishment to designate smoking areas.
•  The ordinance does not prohibit the use of e-cigarettes in public places and workplaces.

What is the rationale for strengthening smokefree protections in Mountain Brook?

•  To promote positive and healthy lifestyles.
• To support community demand.

• To adopt national smokefree standards.

•  To align with the cities of Birmingham, Vestavia Hills, Homewood, and 25 other
municipalities in Alabama that have adopted strong smokefree ordinances.

•  To address the increasing exposure of children and families to e-cigarettes.
• To lead other cities by example.

•  To support a statewide smokefree law.

• To reduce the demand for tobacco products.

• To reduce tobacco use among youth and drive tobacco cessation.



I

What does a comprehensive smokefree poUcy include?

A comprehensive smokefree policy is one that prohibits smoking in all workplaces including all
hospitality venues and indoor public places. The following are the highlights of a model policy:

•  "Smoking" is defined as inhaling, exhaling, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated
cigar, cigarette, or pipe, or any other lighted or heated tobacco or plant product intended
for inhalation, including hookahs and marijuana, whether natural or synthetic, in any
manner or in any form. "Smoking" also includes the use of an electronic smoking device
which creates an aerosol or vapor, in any manner or in any form.

•  Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed places of employment.

•  Smoking is prohibited in all enclosed public places such as: all hotel rooms, restaurants,
bars, health care facilities, retail stores, public transit frcilities, sports arenas, mnsemns,
service lines, common-use areas of multi-unit residential buildings, day care centers,

galleries, libraries, private clubs, convention facilities and educational facilities, both
public and private.

• The policy does not allow a business to designate separate indoor smoking areas. .

•  It also limits smoking outdoors, such as within a certain distance of entrances and exits to
buildings (recommended 15-25 feet). Many jurisdictions have also restricted smoking in
restaurant patios, outdoor arenas and stadiums, parks and playgrounds.

•  The policy requires the owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a place of
employment or public place to clearly and conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs.

•  Smoking is not regulated in private residences, except when used as a childcare, adult day
care, or health care facility.



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT SMOKING IN ENCLOSED

AREAS WITHIN GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS, LICENSED

BUSINESSES AND NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS IN THE

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama has found that numerous
studies show that tobacco smoke may be a major contributor to indoor air pollution and that breathing
secondhand smoke may be a cause of disease, including lung cancer, in nonsmokers; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is concerned about the
health hazards induced by breathing secondhand smoke which include lung cancCT, heart disease,
respiratory infection, and decreased respiratory function, including bronchospasm

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook,
Alabama, as follows:

1. As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings:
(1) GOVERNMENT BUILDING: Any building operated or occupied by state, county or city

government, or any agencies thereof, or any other separate corporate instrumentality or
unit of state, county or city government.

(2) LICENSED BUSINESS: An organization or entity required to obtain a license from the
City of Mountain Brook in order to engage in business or conduct business in the City.

(2) NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION: An organization or entity which is recognized by the
United States Internal Revenue Service as a tax-exen^t, non-profit organization under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

(3) RETAIL TOBACCO STORE: A retail store whose primary business is the sale of
tobacco products and accessories and in which die sale of other products is merely
incidental.

(4) PRIVATE CLUB: A premise operated by an organization which is not available to and not
customarily used by the general public and entry and privileges thereto are established by

regulations of that organization.

(5) PRIVATE FUNCTION: The rental of a ballroom, restaurant, private club, or other
facility for the sole purpose of entertaining, private parties, events or other social
functions.

(6) SMOKING: The burning of a lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, or any other matter or
substance that contains tobacco.

2. Except as otherwise provided in this subs«:tion, no person shall smoke in an enclosed area widiin a
government building, licensed business or nonprofit organization. This prohibition does not apply
to any of the following:

(1) Permanently designated smoking rooms in any hotel or motel that pays hotel or motel
taxes;

(2) Any establishment licensed by the City of Mountain Brook to sell alcoholic beverages for
consunption by patrons on the premise, for which, in the usual course of business.

/Ct-v



alcoholic beverage sales constitute more than forty per cent (40%) of total revenues;

provided, however, that said exenption shall only apply ato 4:00 p.m. on any business
day.

(3) Retail tobacco stores;

(4) Private tunctions;

(5) Private clubs.

3. Notwithstanding ai^ of die foregoing, nothing shall preclude any business establishment from
designating an area in said establishment for smoking if said area is clearly identified, fully
separated and apart from all nonsmoking areas, enclosed, and designed so as to ensure that all

other areas of said business remain completely free of the byproducts of smoking.

4. An organization or entity subject to an exception to this ordinance may choose to become subject to

the provisions of this ordinance. Upon applying for a license from the city, an entity subject to an
exception to this ordinance shall indicate whether or not choose to be subject to fiie ordinance.

5. The owner, operator, manager, or ofiier person in charge of a government building, licensed

business or noiqirofit organization shall clearfy and conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs or the
international "No Smoking" symbol, which consists of a pictorial rq)resentation of a burning
cigarette enclosed in a red circle wifii a red bar across it, near all entrances where smoking is

prohibited by this ordinance. In any establishment where smoking is allowed under this Ordinance,

signs indicated that smoking is permitted and the particular circumstances in which it is permitted

shall be clearly and conspicuously posted near each entrance used by the public.

6. The person in charge of a govemmmt building, licensed business or noiq}rofit organization shall

not knowingly permit, cause, suffer or allow any person to violate the provisions of this ordinance
in that place. It shall be an affirmative defense to an allied violation of this subsection that the
person having control of a place has asked that the lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe or other tobacco
product be extinguished and asked the person to leave the establishment if fiiat person has failed or
refused to extinguish the lighted cigarette, cigar, p^e or other tobacco products.

7. A person who smokes in an area where smoking is prohibited by the provisions of this ordinance
shall be guilty of an ordinance violation, punishable by a fine of at least twenty-five dollars
($25.00), but not to exceed one hundred dollars ($100.00).

8. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in charge of a gpvemment building, licensed
business or nonprofit organization who fails to con^ly with fiie provisions of this Article shall be
guilty of an ordinance violation, punishable by:
(1) A fine not exceeding one himdred dollars ($100) for a first violation;
(2) fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation wifiiin a one (1) year

period;
(3) A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for a third or subsequent violations widiin

a one (1) year period.

9. Each day on which a violation of this Ordinance occurs shall be a sq^arate and distinct violation.



10. Jurisdiction for violations of diis ordinance shall be with the municipal court. A charge of a
violation shall be treated in the same manner as a traffic citation. Any law enforcement officer
may issue a citation pursuant to this section.

11. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City
of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby

expressly repealed.

12. Severabiiitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or

invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or inpair the remainder of

this ordinance, which shall continue in fiill force and effect notwidistanding such holding.

13. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective January 1^ 2006.

ADOPTED: This ̂  day of 2005.

ADOPTED: This 7^ dav of ^ ̂  , 2005.

Thomas C. Clark, Jr., Council President

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor



CERTIFICATION

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of tiie City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by die City Council of die City of Mountain
Brook at its meeting held on November 28, 2005, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting,
and published by posting copies thaeof on November 29,2005, at the following public places, which
copies remained posted for five (5) days as provided by law:

City Hall, 56 Church Street Joe Muggs Newsstand, 2837 Cahaba Road
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road Piggfy Wiggly Food Store 4, 93 Euclid Avenue
The Invitation Place, 3150 Overton Road

Steven Boone, City Clerk



ORDINANCE NO. 2585

AN ORDINANCE TO RESTRICT THE LOCATION OF CERTAIN

BUSINESSES WITHIN FIVE HUNDRED FEET OF ANY SCHOOL,
CHURCH, OR RELIGIOUS INSTITUTION OR FACILITY LOCATED
WITHIN THE CITY OF HOMEWOOD, ALABAMA.

WHEREAS, the City of Homewood, Alabama (the "City") has previously adopted
Ordinance No. 2582 restricting smoking within the City.

WHEREAS, the City desires to further regulate and restrict the location of business defined
as vape shops or tobacco shops in Ordinance No. 2582 previously adopted by the City Council.

WHEREAS, the City has determined that, based on public health and safety concerns, the
location of vape shops and tobacco shops as defined by Ordinance No. 2582 shall be restricted
pursuant to this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Homewood
at a regular meeting, duly assembled, a quorum being present, as follows:

Section 1. That no vape shop or tobacco shop, as defined by Ordinance No. 2582,
previously adopted by the City Council on the 9*^ day of November, 2015, shall be permitted or
located within five hundred (500) feet of any school, church, or religious institution or facility. For
the purposes of this section, the distance between the school, church, or religious institution or
facility shall be measured from the closest point of the property on which such school, church, or
religious institution or facility is located to the nearest point of the property on which the vape
shop or tobacco shop is located.

Section 2. All other Ordinances or parts of Ordinances heretofore adopted by the City
Council of the City of Homewood, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this
Ordinance are hereby expressly repealed.

Section 3. That if any part, provision, or section of this ordinance is declared to be
unconstitutional or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, all other parts, provisions or
sections of this ordinance not thereby affected shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall become immediately effective upon its adoption by the
City Council and approval by the Mayor or as otheiwise becoming law.

ADOPTED this the 7 th day of December , 2015.

President of



APPROVED:

Mayor

ATTEST:

r

Cit^lerk

This notice posted ,2015

At the following locations: Mayor's Office (City Hall), Homcwood Public Library,
Honiewood Senior Center (Oak Grove Road) and Lee Community Center (Rosedalc)

And at www.homewoodaLnct,



ORDINANCE NUMBER 2411

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE 2209, ADOPTED JUNE 6,
2005, AND ADOPT IN FULL ORDINANCE NUMBER 24II TITLED THE
"CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS SMOKE-FREE ORDINANCE OF 2012"

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Vestavia Hills finds that numerous studies have

shown that (1) exposure to secondhand smoke, a known carcinogen, causes disease and

premature death in children and adults who do not smoke; (2) children exposed to secondhand

smoke are at an increased risk for sudden infant death syndrome (SIDS), acute respiratory

problems, ear infections, and asthma attacks, and that smoking by parents causes respiratory

symptoms and slows lung growth in their children; (3) even occasional exposure of adults to

secondhand smoke has adverse effects on the cardiovascular system and causes coronary heart

disease and lung cancer; (4) there is no risk-free level of exposure to secondhand smoke; (5)

establishing smoke-free workplaces is the only effective way to ensure that secondhand smoke

exposure does not occur in the workplace, because ventilation and other air cleaning

technologies cannot completely control exposure of nonsmokers to secondhand smoke; and (6)

evidence from peer-reviewed studies shows that smoke-free policies and laws improve health

and do not have an adverse economic impact on, and may positively impact, the hospitality

industry.'

WHEREAS, the Council finds that studies have shown that during periods of active

smoking, peak and average outdoor tobacco smoke levels measured in outdoor cafes and

restaurant and bar patios near smokers rival indoor tobacco smoke concentrations.^ Nonsmokers

who spend six-hour periods in outdoor smoking sections of bars and restaurants experience a

significant increase in levels of cotinine when compared to the cotinine levels in a smoke-free

outdoor area.^

WHEREAS, the Council finds that studies have shown that residual tobacco

contamination, or "thirdhand smoke," from cigarettes, cigars, and other tobacco products is left

behind after smoking occurs and builds up on surfaces and furnishings. This sticky, highly toxic

particulate matter, including nicotine, can linger in spaces long after smoking has ceased and

cling to walls and ceilings and be absorbed into carpets, draperies, and other upholsteries, and

then be reemitted (off-gassed) back into the air and recombine to form harmful compounds.

Tobacco residue is noticeably present in dust throughout places where smoking has occurred.'*



Ordinance Number 2411
Page 2

This process represents an unappreciated health hazard through dermal exposure, dust inhalation,

and ingestion/

WHEREAS, the Council finds that unregulated high-tech smoking devices, commonly

referred to as electronic cigarettes, or "e-cigarettes," closely resemble and purposefully mimic

the act of smoking by having users inhale vaporized liquid nicotine created by heat through an

electronic ignition system. The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) determined that various

samples tested contained not only nicotine but also detectable levels of known carcinogens and

toxic chemicals, including tobacco-specific nitrosamines and diethylene glycol, a toxic chemical

used in antifreeze. The FDA's testing also suggested that "quality control processes used to

manufacture these products are inconsistent or non-existent^ "E-cigarettes" produce a vapor of

undetermined and potentially harmful substances, which may appear similar to the smoke

emitted by traditional tobacco products. Their use in workplaces and public places where

smoking of traditional tobacco products is prohibited creates concern and confusion and leads to

difficulties in enforcing the smoking prohibitions.

WHEREAS, the Council finds that the Society of Actuaries has determined that

secondhand smoke costs the U.S. economy approximately $10 billion a year: $5 billion in

estimated medical costs associated with secondhand smoke e?q)osure and $4.6 billion in lost
*7

productivity.

WHEREAS, the Council finds that there is no legal or constitutional "right to smoke"

and that business owners have no legal or constitutional right to expose their employees and

customers to the toxic chemicals in secondhand smoke and instead have a common-law duty to

provide their workers with a workplace that is not unreasonably dangerous.^
WHEREAS, the Council finds that smoking is a potential cause of fires and cigarette and

•  9
cigar bums and ash stains on merchandise and fixtures cause economic damage to businesses.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Vestavia Hills finds that secondhand

smoke is a form of air pollution, a danger to health, and a material public nuisance, and deems it

appropriate to enact the following ordinance to (1) protect the public health and welfare by

prohibiting smoking in public places and places of employment, (2) guarantee the right of

nonsmokers to breathe smoke-free air, and (3) recognize that the need to breathe smoke-free air

shall have priority over the desire to smoke.



Ordinance Number 2411
Page 3

Section 1. BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Vestavia Hills

that Ordinance 2209, as amended is hereby repealed and the following Ordinance Number 2411

is hereby adopted to read in full as follows:

Section 2. Smoking In Public Places And Places Of Employment

(а) Definitions, In this Section, the following definitions shall apply:
(1) means an establishment that is devoted to the serving of alcoholic

beverages for consumption by guests on the premises and in which the serving of
food is only incidental to,the consumption of those beverages, including but not
limited to: taverns, nightclubs, cocktail lounges, and cabarets.

(2) '^Business" means a sole proprietorship, partnership, joint venture,
corporation, or other business entity, either for-profit or not-for-profit, including retail
establishments where goods or services are sold; professional corporations and other
entities where legal, medical, dental, engineering, architectural, or other professional
services are delivered; and private clubs.

(3) ^^E'Cigarette" means any electronic oral device, such as one composed of a
heating element, battery, and/or electronic circuit, which provides a vapor of nicotine
or any other substances, and the use or inhalation which simulates smoking. The term
shall include any such device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold
as an "e-cigarette", "e-cigar", "e-pipe", or under any other product name or
descriptor.

(4) "Employee" means a person who works for an employer, whether in
consideration for direct or indirect monetary wages or profit, or as a volunteer.

(5) "Employer" means a person, association, trust, or a business, including a
municipal corporation, with one or more employees.

(б) "Enclosed ArecC^ means all space between a floor and a ceiling that is
bounded on at least two sides by walls, doorways, or windows, whether open or
closed. A wall includes any retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier,
whether temporary or permanent and whether or not containing openings of any kind.

(7) "Health Care Facility means an office or institution providing care or
treatment of diseases, whether physical, mental, or emotional, or other medical.



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 4

physiological, or psychological conditions, including but not limited to: hospitals,

rehabilitation hospitals or other clinics, including weight control clinics, nursing

homes, long-term care facilities, homes for the aging or chronically ill, laboratories,

and offices of surgeons, chiropractors, physical therapists, physicians, psychiatrists,

' dentists, and all specialists within these professions. This definition shall include all

waiting rooms, hallways, private rooms, semiprivate rooms, and wards within,health

care facilities.

(8) "P/arce of Employment^ means an area under the control of a public or

private employer, including, but not limited to: work areas, private offices, employee

lounges, restrooms, conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee

cafeterias, hallways, construction sites, temporary offices, and vehicles. A private

residence is not a "place of employment" unless it is used as a child care, adult day

care, or health care facility.

(9) "^Private Club'' means an organization, whether incorporated or not, which

is the owner, lessee, or occupant of a building or portion thereof used exclusively for

club purposes at all times, which is operated solely for a recreational, firatemal, social,

patriotic, political, benevolent, or athletic purpose, but not for pecuniary gain, and

which only sells alcoholic beverages incidental to its operation. The affairs and

management of the organization are conducted by a board of directors, executive

conunittee, or similar body chosen by the members at an annual meeting. The

organization has established bylaws and/or a constitution to govern its activities,

requires applications to be completed for membership, and maintains membership

records that show the date of application, admission, name and address for each

member, and serial number of the membership card issued. The organization has been

granted an exemption firom the payment of federal income tax as a club under 26

U.S.C. Section 501.

(10) "Pw6//c Place" means an area to which the public is permitted. A private

residence is not a "public place" unless it is used as a child care, adult day care, or

health care facility.

(11) '*Restauranf' means an eating establishment, including but not limited to:

coffee shops, cafeterias, sandwich stands, and private and public school cafeterias.



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 5

which gives or offers for sale food to the public, guests, or employees, as well as

kitchens and catering facilities in which food is prepared on the premises for serving

elsewhere. The term "restaurant" shall include a bar area within the restaurant.

(12) Service Line** means an indoor or outdoor line in which one or more

persons are waiting for or receiving service of any kind, whether or not the service

involves the exchange of money, including but not limited to: ATM lines, concert

lines, food vendor lines, movie ticket lines, and sporting event lines.

(13) Shopping MalP* means an enclosed public walkway or hall area that

serves to connect retail or professional establishments.

(14) **Smoke** or "Smoking* means inhaling, exhaling, burning, or cartying any

lighted or heated cigar, cigarette, pipe, or other tobacco or plant product intended for

inhalation, in any manner or in any form. "Smoking" also includes the use of an "e-

cigarette" which creates a vapor, in any manner or in any form, or the use of any oral

smoking device for the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking in this

Section.

(15) Sports Arena** means a place where people assemble to engage in

physical exercise, participate in athletic competition, or witness sports or other events,

including sports pavilions, stadiums, gymnasiums, health spas, boxing arenas,

swimming pools, roller and ice rinks, and bowling alleys.

(b) Prohibition OfSmoking In Enclosed Public Places, Smoking shall be prohibited in

all enclosed public places within the City of Vestavia Hills, including but not limited

to, the following places:

(1) Aquariums, galleries, libraries, and museums;

(2) Banks;

(3) Bar and lounges;

(4) Bingo facilities;

(5) Child care and adult day care facilities;

(6) Convention facilities;

(7) Educational facilities, both public and private;

(8) Elevators;



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 6

(9) Gaming facilities, including bingo facilities;

(10) Health care facilities;

(11) Hotels and motels;

(12) Laundromats;

(13) Lobbies, hallways, and other common areas in apartment buildings,

condominiums, trailer parks, retirement facilities, nursing homes, and other multiple-

unit residential facilities;

(14) Polling places;

(15) Private clubs;

(16) Professional offices;

(17) Public transportation vehicles, including buses and taxicabs, under the

authority of the City of Vestavia Hills, and ticket, boarding, and waiting areas of

public transportation facilities, including bus, train, and airport facilities;

(18) Restaurants and retail food production and marketing establishments;

(19) Restrooms, lobbies, reception areas, waiting rooms, hallways, and other

common-use areas;

(20) Retail service establishments;

(21) Retail stores;

(22) Rooms, chambers, places of meeting or public assembly, and other

enclosed areas and vehicles owned, leased, or operated by the City of Vestavia Hills,

including areas under the control of an agency, board, commission, or committee of

the City, to the extent the place is subject to the jurisdiction of the City;

(23) Service lines;

(24) Shopping malls;

(25) Sports arenas, including enclosed places in outdoor arenas; and

(26) Theaters and other facilities primarily used for exhibiting motion pictures,

stage dramas, lectures, musical recitals, or other similar performances.

(c) Prohibition Of Smoking In Enclosed Places Of Employment

(1) Smoking shall be prohibited in all enclosed areas of places of employment within

the City of Vestavia Hills, including, but not limited to: common work areas.



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 7

auditoriums, classrooms, conference and meeting rooms, private offices, elevators,

hallways, medical facilities, cafeterias, employee lounges, stairs, restrooms, vehicles.

This prohibition also applies to rooms, chambers, places of meeiting or public

assembly, and other enclosed areas and vehicles owned, leased, or operated by the

City of Vestavia Hills, including areas under the control of an agency, board,

commission, or committee of the City,, to the extent the place is subject to the

Jurisdiction of the City.

(2) This prohibition on smoking shall be communicated to all existing employees by

the effective date of this Section and to all prospective employees upon their

application for employment.

(d) Prohibition Of Smoking In Enclosed Residential Facilities, Smoking shall be

prohibited in the following enclosed residential facilities:

(1) All private and semiprivate rooms in nursing homes and

(2) . All hotel and motel rooms that are rented to guests.

(e) Prohibition Of Smoking In Outdoor Public Places, Smoking shall be prohibited

in the following outdoor places:

(1) Within a reasonable distance of 20 feet outside entrances, operable windows, and

ventilation systems of enclosed areas where smoking is prohibited, so as to prevent

tobacco smoke from entering those areas;

(2) In, and within 20 feet of, outdoor seating or serving areas of restaurants and bars;

(3) In all outdoor arenas, stadiums, and amphitheaters. Smoking shall also be

prohibited in, and within 20 feet of, bleachers and grandstands for use by spectators at

sporting and other public events;

(4) In, and within 20 feet of, all outdoor public transportation stations, platforms, and

shelters under the authority of the City of Vestavia Hills; and

(5) In all outdoor service lines;



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 8

(Q Exemptions. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section to the contrary,

smoking shall not be prohibited in private residences, unless used as a child care,

adult day care, or health care facility.

(g) Declaration Of Establishment Or Outdoor Area As Nonsmoking.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, an owner, operator, manager, or

other person in control of an establishment, facility, or outdoor area may declare that

entire establishment, facility, or outdoor area as a nonsmoking place. Smoking shall

be prohibited in any place in which a sign conforming to the requirements of Section

2(h) is posted.

(h) Posting Of Signs And Removal OfAshtrays. The owner, operator, manager, or ̂

other person in control of a public place or place of employment where smoking is

prohibited by this Section shall:

(1) Clearly and conspicuously post *1^0 Smoking" signs or the international "No

Smoking" symbol (consisting of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette

enclosed in a red circle with a red bar across it) in that place.

(2) Clearly and conspicuously post at every entrance to that place a sign stating that

smoking is prohibited.

(3) Clearly and conspicuously post on every vehicle that constitutes a place of

employment under this Section at least one sign, visible from the exterior of the

vehicle, stating that smoking is prohibited.

(4) Remove all ashtrays from any area where smoking is prohibited by this Section,

except for ashtrays displayed for sale and not for use on the premises.

(1) Nonretaliation; Nonwaiver Of Rights.

(1) No person or employer shall discharge, refuse to hire, or in any manner retaliate

against an employee, applicant for employment, customer, or resident of a multiple-

unit residential facility because that employee, applicant, customer, or resident

exercises any rights afforded by this Section or reports or attempts to prosecute a

violation of this Section. Notwithstanding Section 2(k), violation of this provision



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 9

shall be a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars

($500) for each violation.

(2) An employee who works in a setting where an employer allows smoking does not

waive or otherwise surrender any legal rights the employee may have against the

employer or any other party.

(j) Enforcement,

(1) . This Section shall be enforced by the county health officer or his or her duly

authorized representative, any duly swom police officer employed by the City of

Vestavia Hills, or as otherwise allowed by law.

(2) Notice of the provisions of this Section shall be given to all applicants for a

business license in the City of Vestavia Hills.

(3) Any resident who desires to register a complaint under this Section may initiate

enforcement with an entity responsible for enforcement, such as the Jefferson County

Department of Health or Police Department

(4) The County Health Department, the Fire Department, or their designees shall,

while an establishment is undergoing otherwise mandated inspections, inject for

compliance with this Section.

(5) Any owner, manager, operator, or employee of an area regulated by this Section

shall direct a person who is smoking in violation of this Section to extinguish the

product being smoked. If the person does not stop smoking, the owner, manager,

operator, or employee shall refuse service and immediately ask the person to leave the

premises. If the person in violation refuses to leave the premises, the owner, manager,

operator, or employee shall contact a law enforcement agency.

(6) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, an employee or private

citizen may bring legal action to enforce this Section.

(7) In addition to the remedies provided by the provisions of this Section, the City of

Vestavia Hills, the county health officer, or any person aggrieved by the failure of the

owner, operator, manager, or other person in control of a public place or a place of

employment to comply with the provisions of this Section may apply for injunctive

relief to enforce those provisions in any court of competent jurisdiction.



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 10

(k) Violations and Penalties,

(1) A person who knowingly or intentionally smokes in an area where smoking is

prohibited by the provisions of this Section commits an offense, punishable by a fine

of fifty dollars ($50) per offense. A charge of violation shall be treated in the same

manner as a traffic violation.

(2) Except as otherwise provided in Section I (1), a person who owns, manages,

operates, or otherwise controls a public place or place of employment and who fails

to comply with the provisions of this Section shall be guilty of an offense, punishable

by:

a. A fine of one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation. A charge of violation

shall be treated in the same manner as a trafific violation.

b. A fine of two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation within one (1) year. A

charge of violation shall be treated in the same manner as a traffic violation.

c. A fine of five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional violation within one (1)

year. A charge of violation shall be treated in the same manner as a traffic

violation.

(3) In addition to the fines established by this Section, violation of this Section by a

person who owns, manages, operates, or otherwise controls a public place or place of

employment may result in the suspension or revocation of any permit or license

issued to the person for the premises on which the violation occurred.

(4) Violation of this Section is hereby declared to be a public nuisance, which may be

abated by the City of Vestavia Hills, the county health officer, or a designee by

restraining order, preliminary and permanent injunction, or other means provided for

by law, and the entity or person seeking abatement may take action to recover the

costs of the nuisance abatement.

(5) Each day on which a violation of this Section occurs shall be considered a

separate and distinct violation.

(1) Other Applicable Laws, This Section shall not be interpreted or construed to permit

smoking where it is otherwise restricted by other applicable laws.

10



Ordinance Nitmber 2411

Page 11

(m) Liberal Construction, This Section shall be liberally construed so as to further its

purposes.

Section 3. Public Education. The City of Vestavia Hills shall engage in a continuing

program to explain and clarify the purposes and requirements of this Ordinance to residents

affected by it, and to guide owners, operators, and managers in their compliance with it. The

program may include publication of a brochure for affected businesses and individuals

explaining the provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 4. Governmental Agency Cooperation. Hie City of Vestavia Hills shall

annually request other governmental and educational agencies having facilities within Jefferson

and Shelby Counties to establish local operating procedures in cooperation and compliance with

this Ordinance. This includes urging all Federal, State, County, and School District agencies to

update their existing smoking regulations to be consistent with the current health findings

regarding secondhand smoke.

Section 5. Severability. If any word, provision, clause, sentence, paragraph, or

subsection of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall be

held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction then the remaining provisions of this Ordinance

shall be in full force and effect.

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective 30 days after approval by

the Council of the City of Vestavia Hills and Mayor, and publication should be made as required

by law, showing the effective date.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25"" day of June, 2012.

Mary Lee'
Council President

11



Ordinance Number 2411

Page 12

ATTESTED BY:

ibcca Leavings
City Clerk

APPROVED BY:

Alberto

Mayor

CERTIFICATION;

I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2411 is a true and correct copy
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the
25"^ day of June, 2012, as same appears in die official records of said City.

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the day of

2012.

}ecca Leavings
City Clerk

12



Ordinance Number 24JI

Page 13

END NOTES;

1. U.S Department of Health and Human Services. "The Health Consequences of
Involuntary Exposure to Tobacco Smoke: A Report of the Surgeon General." U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, Office on
Smoking and Health, 2006.

2. Klepeis, N.; Ott, W.R.; Switzer, P. "Real-time measurement of outdoor tobacco smoke
particles," Journal of the Air and Waste Management Association, 57: 522-534,2007.

3. Hall, J.C.; Bemert, J.T.; Hall, D.B.; St. Helen, G.; Kudon, L.H.; Naeher, L.P.;
"Assessment of exposure to secondhand smoke at outdoor bars and family restaurants in
Athens, Georgia, using salivary cotinine," Journal of Occupational and Environmental
Hygiene 6(11): 698-704, November 2009.

4. Singer, B.C.; Hodgson, A.T.; Nazaroff, W.W., "Effect of sorption on exposures to
organic gases from environmental tobacco smoke (ETS)," Proceedings, Indoor Air 2002,
2002.

5. Matt, G.E.; Quintana, P.J.E.; Hovel, M.F.; Bernert, J.T.; Song, S.; Novianti, N.' Juarez
T.; Floro, J.: Gehrman, C.: Garcia, M.: Larson, S., *TIouseholds contaminated by
environmental tobacco smoke: sources of infant exposures," Tobacco Control 13(1): 29-
37, March 2004.

6. Summary of results: laboratory analysis of electronic cigarettes conducted by FDA,"
Food and Drug Administration (FDA), July 22, 2009;
http//www.fda.gov/NewsEvents/PublicHealthFocus/ucml73146.htm ; accessed on
October 22,2009

7. Behan, D.F.; Eriksen, M.P.; Lin, Y., "Economic Effects of Environmental Tobacco
Smoke," Society of Actuaries, March 2005.

8. Graff, S.K., "There is No Constitutional Right to Smoke: 2008," Tobacco Control legal
Consortium, 2d edition, 2008.

9. "The high price of cigarette smoking," Business & Health 15(8), Supplement A: 6-9,
August 1997

OTHER SOURCES
I

A. The Alabama Clean Indoor Air Act at Title 22-15A-2 Code of Alabama, 1975.
B. Vestavia Hills Ordinance Number 2009 "An Ordinance to Prohibit Smoking in Public

Places, Providing Penalties for the Violation Thereof," adopted on June 6,2005.

13



All In Mountain Brook

a 501(3)c community non-profit

do 2653 Montevalio Rd

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223

allinmountainbrook.org

allinmountainbrook@gmail.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jack Young, Chairman

Leigh Ann Sisson, President

Dr. Richard C. Barlow

R. Bruce Barze, Jr.

Leslie Brown

Cameron Cole

Chief Ted Cook

Alice Churnock

Donald Clayton

William Dow

Elizabeth Dunn

Suzan Doidge

Don Menendez

Chief Chris Mullins

Renee Fenn

Sam Gaston

Amanda Hood

Laurie King

Dr. Craig Martin

Rabbi Jonathan Miller

Carmen Morrow

Billy Pritchard

Laura Sink

Wayne Splawn

Dan Starnes

Stephen M. Taylor, M.D.

Kavita Vasil

Dale Wisely, Ph.D.

To enhance and protect the lives ofMountain Brook Youth

July 5,2016

Mountain Brook City Council

56 Church Street

PO Box 130009

Mountain Brook AL 35213

Dear Members of the City Council:

We write to express our support for revisions of the city's ordinance

which would further restrict smoking in public places in Mountain Brook,

along with updating the ordinance to apply to the use of e-cigarettes and

related products in public places.

As you know. All In Mountain Brook is a community nonprofit whose

purpose is to enhance and protect the lives of Mountain Brook youth.

Accordingly, it is consistent with our purpose that we support further

restrictions on smoking in public places in Mountain Brook and the

addition of language restricting use of e-cigarettes and related products.

We have learned that the use of tobacco products and e-cigarettes and

vaping devices is a significant problem among our community's youth.

Perhaps surprisingly, in recent years, anon3TTious surveys conducted at

Mountain Brook High School have revealed that our teenagers are more

likely to indicate that they smoke cigarettes than the level shown on

national averages for the survey. For example, in 2014-2015, 27.5% of

MBHS seniors said they had smoked cigarettes in the 30 days prior to the

survey, while only 19.6% of seniors nationwide said they had.

Furthermore, the same survey results indicate that our teenagers are

aware of the great risk associated with smoking. This finding argues for

the need for measures beyond simply educating these students about the

dangers of smoking. They are aware of the danger. Additional

interventions, such as additional community-wide restrictions on public

smoking, are needed.

In addition, the data regarding the harmful effects of children's exposure

to secondhand smoke are compelling. Secondhand smoke is especially



harmful to young children. Secondhand smoke is responsible for between

150,000 and 300,000 lower respiratory tract infections in infants and

children under 18 months of age, resulting in between 7,500 and 15,000

hospitalizations each year. It also causes 430 sudden infant death

syndrome (SIDS) deaths in the U.S. annually.

Also troubling is our local data regarding the use of "vaping" and e-

cigarettes among our youth. During the 2014-2015 school year, survey

results indicated that 12% of Mountain Brook 9^ graders, 19% of 10th

graders, 25% of ll^^ graders, and 32% of seniors said they had used an e-

cigarette in the 30 days prior to the survey's administration.

While our students are aware of the risk of regular cigarette-smoking,

they are less clear about the dangers of e-cigarettes. 57% indicated on the

survey that e-cigarettes pose "no risk" or "slight risk."

To reduce the number of young people who begin to smoke or use other

tobacco products, the American Academy of Pediatrics recommends a

number of policy measures, including prohibition of smoking and other

tobacco products that produce toxic emission in all workplaces, including

bars, restaurants, and in places where children live, learn and play,

including sidewalks, recreational and sports facilities, and entertainment

venues.

For these reasons, we express our support for revisions of the city's

ordinance which would further restrict smoking in public places in

Mountain Brook, along with updating the ordinance to apply to the use of

e-cigarettes and related products in public places.

Thank you for your service and for your unwavering support of All In

Mountain Brook's efforts.

Sincerely,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ALL IN MOUNTAIN BROOK



Pride Survey
Anonymous survey administered grades 9-12

It surveys a wide range of student-reported behaviors
and attitudes regarding substance use and school

climate.



Pride Survey
Smoklng-related data from 2014-2015



During the past 30 days did you
smoke part of al l of a cigarette?
30.0%

25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0% -

MB a USA
27.5%

19.6%

17.1%

14.1%
12.8%12.8%

10.1%

9th 10th 11th

Grade

12th



During the past 30 days did you
smoke part of al l of a cigarette?

30.0%

25.0%

20.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

■v-r, . .r-A Comment:MB IE USA
27.5% These data indicate that MB

teenagers are more likely to
say they smoke cigarettes

|19.6% than national averages for
17.1% ■ high school students.

12.8%12.8% ■ ■ This has been consistently
10.1%

s
6.4%

true in the last several years
of surveying.

10 11 12

Grade



During the past 30 days did you
smoke an e-cigarette? (MB)

35.0%

30.0%

25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

11.8%

9th

MB

32.1%

24.7%

19.0%

10th 11th 12th

Grade



Perceived risk of 1-2 packs
cigarettes/day (Grades 9-12)
80.0%

70.0%

60.0%

50.0%

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

10.9%

4.0%

MB USA

7.0%

No Risk

4.5%

Slight Risk

19.6% 19.7%

71.9%

62.4%

Moderate Risk Great Risk



Perceived risk of 1-2 packs
cigarettes/day (Grades 9-12)

80.0%

70.0%

60.0%

50.0%

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

MB ra USA

10.9%

4.0% 4.5%
7.0%

19.6% 19.7%

II

71.9%

62.4%

1

No Risk Slight Risk Moderate Great Risk

Risk

Comment:

These data indicate that our

teenagers are aware of the
great risks associated with
smoking. Accordingly, as
with adult smokers, we are
in need of measures beyond
just educating and informing
about risks.



Perceived risk of e-cigs (MB Gr
12)

9-

45.0%

40.0%

35.0%

30.0%

25.0%

20.0%

15.0%

10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

17.8%

39.6%

No Risk Slight Risk

MB BUSA

27.6%

15.1%

Moderate Risk Great Risk



June 30,2016

Sam Gaston

56 Church Street

PO Box 130009

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

Dear Sam Gaston,

I want to voice my support for the model ordinance prohibiting smoking in all workplaces and public places
for numerous reasons. The first and foremost is my 8 year old daughter. Even she knows that "smoking is bad
for you", and allowing people to use tobacco products (including e-cigarettes) in public places puts her at
unnecessary risk for exposure.

As a pediatric healthcare provider, I have personally taken care of children with symptoms of chronic ear
infections and increased asthma attacks, as a direct result of exposure to secondhand smoke. Even when
caregivers smoked outside the home, there was enough "smoke residue" to trigger health issues for the children
who lived there.

I also hope that ALL electronic smoking devices will be part of the same standards as cigarettes. These devices
have no regulatory controls of the age of buyer or even ingredients included. They are marketed as being safer
dian cigarettes although there is no data to support this claim. We do not want any 'Vaping" shops in our
community.

Sincerely,

6'

Julie Cole Farmer

16 VC'INTHROP AVENUE

MOUNTAIN BROOK , ALABAMA 35213



reasons why e-cigarettes

E-cigarettes are a growing trend to substitute cigarettes

• Are battery operated devices

• Modeled to look and feel like cigarettes

• Use an atomizer to heat liquid from a cartridge until it becomes an aerosol

• Produce aerosol containing nicotine, ultra fine particles and low levels of
carcinogenic and otherwise toxic materials

• Burns, body-scarring blasts and explosions have been documented as a
result of their use

E-cigarettes present special dangers to our youth
• They can be purchased without proof of age.

•They are available in flavors including cotton candy, bubble gum, chocolate,
strawberry and mint.

• They are appealing to kids and a new route to conventional smoking and
nicotine addiction for teenagers.

Nicotine poisoning is a serious risk
• Pure nicotine is deadly poison

• A fatal dose of nicotine for an adult is between 50 and 60 milligrams: a fatal
dose for children is less. E-cigarettes contain 18 mg to 24 mg per unit.

•The number of calls to poison control centers about e-cigarette nicotine-
infused liquids have risen sharply in the last few years. As many as 51% of
those calls involved accidental poisoning of kids under the age of 5.

E-cigarettes are not a proven Nicotine Replacement Therapy
• Although e-cigarettes are marketed as a "safer alternative to smoking",
they are not approved by the Federal and Drug Administration (FDA)

• Researchers are finding e-cigarette users experience diminished lung
function, airway resistance and cellular changes, regardless of whether
or not they currently (or ever) smoke cigarettes.

The health effects of e-cigarette use are not yet known
• There is no proof that the vapor from e-cigarettes is safe to the user,
or for those who breathe their secondhand vapor.

Jefferson County
Department of Health

SAFE
KIDS
ALABAMA

O
Children's

of Alabama



Sam Gaston

From: Susan Walley, M.D.
Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2016 5:06 PM
To: gastons@mtnbrook.org
Subject: Electronic cigarettes/vaping devices

Attachments: AAP Electronic Cigarette Policy Statementpdf

AAP Electronic

Cigarette Polic...
Mr. Gaston

My name is Dr. Susan Walley. I have been working with Charline Whyte at the Jefferson
County Department of Health educating Mountain Brook residents on the dangers of tobacco
use and tobacco smoke exposure. As a pediatric hospitalist who cares for children on a
daily basis with illnesses caused or worsened by secondhand cigarette exposure, I have
significant concerns about the health risks of ALL tobacco products (which include
electronic cigarettes). In addition to my clinical responsibilities, I am involved
nationally in research and advocacy to protect children from the health harms of tobacco
and electronic cigarette use and smoke exposure. Unfortunately, there is a lot of
false/missing information about electronic cigarettes as there is virtually no regulation
on the production, distribution, marketing and sales of these products.

From a health perspective, the major issues surrounding electronic cigarettes,
particularly in regard to youth use and exposure to electronic cigarette vapor are:

1) One of the major ingredients in e-cigarette solution is nicotine, which is a known
toxin and the sxibstance that makes cigarettes and other tobacco products addictive.
Adolescents are more likely to become addicted to nicotine with even occasional use and
most adult smokers started smoking as teenagers. Nicotine has been also been shown to act
as a "gateway" drug for other substances such as cocaine.

2) The nicotine in electronic cigarettes comes in very concentrated amounts (36 mg/cc) so
an accidental ingestion of even 1/2 teaspoon (2.5 cc) can kill a child. One child in the
United States has already died from an accidental ingestion of electronic cigarette
solution.

3) The vapor from electronic cigarettes is not "harmless water vapor." Electronic
cigarette vapor has been shown to contain the same toxins and carcinogens found in
traditional cigarette smoke.

4) Currently, electronic cigarettes are not subject to federal regulation so anyone could
mix up a batch of electronic cigarette solution and market/sell with words such as
"tobacco-free", "healthy" and "safe." This spring, the FDA deemed they will regulate
electronic cigarettes like they do other tobacco products, however, this will not go into
effect for at least 2 years.

Thank you in advance for your efforts and diligence in keeping Mountain Brook an amazing
community to live, work and play in. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any
questions or thoughts! I have attached the American Academy of Pediatric Policy Statement
that I authored on electronic cigarettes (otherwise known as Electronic Nicotine Delivery
Systems) for additional information.

Susan

Susan C. Walley, MD, CTTS, FAAP
Associate Professor of Pediatrics

Division of Hospital Medicine
University of Alabama at Birmingham/Children's of Alabama Quality Improvement Director,
UAB Pediatric Residency Chair, COA CME Program 1600 7th Avenue South, Suite 108 McWane



PEDIATRICS
OFFICIAL JOURNAL OF THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS

Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems
SECTION ON TOBACCO CONTROL

Pediatrics 2015;136;1018; originally published online October 26, 2015;
DOI: 10.1542/peds.2015-3222

The online version of this article, along with updated information and services, is
located on the World Wide Web at:

/content/136/5/1018.full.htniI

PEDIATRICS is the official journal of the American Academy of Pediatrics. A monthly
publication, it has been published continuously since 1948. PEDIATRICS is owned,
published, and trademarked by the American Academy of Pediatrics, 141 Northwest Point
Boulevard, Elk Grove Village, Illinois, 60007. Copyright © 2015 by the American Academy
of Pediatrics. All riahts reserved. Print ISSN; 0031-4005. Online ISSN: 1098-4275.

American Academy of Pediatrics
DEDICATED TO THE HEALTH OF ALL CHILDREN'

Downloaded from by guest on July 6. 2016



Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems
SECTION ON TOBACCO CONTROL

Pediatrics 2015; 136; 1018; originally published online October 26, 2015;

Updated Information &
Services

including high resolution figures, can be found at:
/content/l 36/5/1018.full.html

References This article cites 46 articles, 18 of which can be accessed free
at:

/content/136/5/1018.full.hiinl#ref-list-1

Citations This article has been cited by 5 HighWire-hosted articles:
/content/136/5/1018.full.html#relaTed-urls

Subspecialty Collections This article, along with others on similar topics, appears in
the following collection(s):
Substance Abuse

/cgi/colIeclion/subslance_abuse_sub
Smoking
/cgi/coIlection/smoking_sub

Permissions & Licensing Information about reproducing this article in parts (figures,
tables) or in its entirety can be found online at:
/site/misc/Pcrmissions..\html

Reprints Information about ordering reprints can be found online:
/sile/mi.sc/reprints.xhtml

PEDIATRICS, is the official journal of the American Academy of Pediatrics. A monthly
publication, it has been published continuously since 1948. PEDIATRICS is owned, published,
and irademarked by the American Academy of Pediatrics, 141 Northwest Point Boulevard, Elk
Grove Villase. Illinois. 60007. Copyrisiht © 2015 by the American Academy of Pediatrics. All
riahts reserved. Print ISSN: 0031-4005. Online ISSN: 1098-4275.

American Academy of Pediatrics
DEDICATED TO THE HEALTH OF ALL CHILDREN"

Downloaded from by guest on July 6. 2016



cessation: a randomised controlled trial.

Lancet 2013;382(9905):1629-1637

51. Fiore MC, Jaen CR, Baker TB, et al.

Treating Tobacco Use and Dependence:

2008 Update. Clinical Practice Guideline.

Rockville, MD: US Department of Health

and Human Services. Public Health

Service; 2008, Available at: www.ahrq.

gov/professionals/clinicians-providers/

guidelines-recommendations/tobacco/

clinicians/update/treating_tobacco_

use08.pdf. Accessed July 8, 2015

52. McRobbie H, Bullen C, Hartmann-Boyce J,

Hajek P. Electronic cigarettes for

smoking cessation and reduction.

Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2014;

12{12):CD010216

53. American Academy of Pediatrics Section

on Tobacco Control. Policy statement:

public policy to protect children from

tobacco, nicotine, and tobacco smoke.

Pediatrics. 2015;136(5):998-1007

54. Marynak K, Holmes CB, King BA, Promoff

G, Bunnell R, McAfee T; Centers for

Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).

State laws prohibiting sales to minors

and Indoor use of electronic nicotine

delivery systems—United States,

November 2014. MMWR Morb Mortal

Wkly Rep. 2014;63(49):1145-1150

55. American Academy of Pediatrics Section

on Tobacco Control. Policy statement:

clinical practice policy to protect
children from tobacco, nicotine, and

tobacco smoke. Pediatrics. 2015;136(5):

1008-1017

56. Lovegrove MC, Hon S, Seller RJ, et al.
Efficacy of flow restrictors in limiting
access of liquid medications by young

children. J Pediatr. 2013;163(4):

1134-9.e1

57. Chaloupka FJ, Yurekli A, Fong 61

Tobacco taxes as a tobacco control

strategy. Tob Control. 2012;21(2):

172-180

1026
Downloaded from by guest on July 6, 2016

FROM THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS



18. Kim AE. Arnold KY, Makarenko 0.

E-cigarette advertising expenditures In

the US. 2011-2012. Am J Prev Med 2014;

46(4):409-412

19. Hodge J6 Jr. Collmer V, Orenstein DG.

Millea C. Van Buren L Reconsidering

the legality of cigarette smoking

advertisements on television public

health and the law. J Law Med Ethics.

2013;41(1):369-373

20. Duke JC. Lee YD, Kim AE. et al. Exposure

to electronic cigarette television

advertisements among youth and young

adults. Pediatrics. 2014;134(1). Available

at: wvvw.pediatrics.org/cgi/content/full/

134/1/e29

21. Robehmed N. E-cigarette sales surpass

$1 billion as big tobacco moves in.

Forbes. September 17,2013. Available at:

www.forbes.com/sites/natalierobehmed/

2013/09/17/e-cigarette-sales-surpass-1-

billion-as-big-tobacco-moves-in/.

Accessed July 8. 2015

22. Goniewicz ML, Knysak J, Gawron M. et al.

Levels of selected carcinogens and

toxicants in vapour from electronic

cigarettes. Tob Control. 2014;23(2):

133-139

23. Jensen RP, Luo W, Pankow JF, Strongin

RM, Peyton DH. Hidden formaldehyde in

e-cigarette aerosols. N EngI J Med. 2015

22:372(4):392-394

24. Goniewicz ML. Kuma T. Gawron M. Knysak J.

Kosmider L. Nicotine levels in

electronic cigarettes. Nicotine Tob Res.

2013:15(1):158-168

25. Soghoian S. Nicotine. In: Hoffman RS.

Hqwland MA. Lewin NA. Nelson LS.

Goldfrank LR, eds. Goidfrank's Toxicologic

Emergencies. 10th ed. New York. NY:

McGraw-Hill Education; 2015:1138-1143

26. Federal Trade Commission. Report on

Tar. Nicotine, and Carbon Monoxide.

Covering 1998. Washington. DC: Federal

Trade Commission; 2000. Available at:

www.ftc.gOv/reports/2000-report-tar-

nicotine-carbon-monoxide-covering-1998.

Accessed September 15. 2015

27. Schroeder MJ, Hoffman AC. Electronic

cigarettes and nicotine clinical

pharmacology. Tob Control. 2014;23

(suppi 2):ii30-ii35

28. Evans SE, Hoffman AC. Electronic

cigarettes: abuse liability, topography

and subjective effects. Tob Control. 2014;

23(suppl 2):ii23-ii29

29. Tierney PA. Karpinski CD. Brown JE, Luo

W. Pankow JF. Flavour chemicals in

electronic cigarette fluids [published

online ahead of print April 15.20151. Tob

Control, doi: 10.1136/tobaccocontrol-

2014-052175

30. Deyton L, Sharfstein J. Hamburg M.

Tobacco product regulation—a public

health approach. N EngI J Med 2010;

362(19):1753-1756

31. Callahan-Lyon P. Electronic cigarettes:

human health effects. Tob Control. 2014;

23(suppl 2):ii36-ii40

32. Schober W, Szendrei K, Matzen W. et al.

Use of electronic cigarettes

(e-cigarettes) impairs indoor air quality

and increases FeNO levels of e-cigarette

consumers. Int J Hyg Environ Health.

2014;217(8):628-637

33. Schripp T. Markewitz D. Uhde E.

Salthammer T. Does e-cigarette

consumption cause passive vaping?

Indoor Air. 2013;23(1):25-31

34. Czogala J. Goniewicz ML. Fidelus B.

Zielinska-Danch W. Travers MJ. Sobczak A.

Secondhand exposure to vapors from

electronic cigarettes. Nicotine Tob Res.

2014;16(6):655-662

35. Williams M, Villarreal A. Bozhilov K. Lin S.

Talbot P. Metal and silicate particles

including nanoparticles are present in

electronic cigarette cartomizer fluid and

aerosol. PLoS One. 2013;8(3):e57987

36. Saffari A. Daher N. Ruprecht A. et al.

Particulate metals and organic

compounds from electronic and tobacco-

containing cigarettes: comparison of

emission rates and.secondhand,

exposure. Environ Sci Process Impacts.

2014;16(10:2259-2267

37. Matt GE. Quintana PJE, Destaillats H,

et al. Thirdhand tobacco smoke:

emerging evidence and arguments for
a multidisciplinary research agenda.

Environ Health Perspect. 2011;119(9):

1218-1226

38. Goniewicz ML. Lee L. Electronic cigarettes

are a source of thirdhand exposure to
nicotine. Nicotine Tob Res. 2015:17(2):

256-258

39. McGrath-Morrow SA, Hayashi M,

Aherrera A. et al. The effects of

electronic cigarette emissions on

systemic cotinine levels, weight and

postnatal lung growth in neonatal mice.

PLoS One. 2015;10(2):e0118344

40. Bahl V. Lin S. Xu N. Davis B. Wang YH.

Talbot P. Comparison of electronic

cigarette refill fluid cytotoxicity using
embryonic and adult models. Reprod

Toxicol. 2012;34(4):529-537

41. Dwyer JB, McQuown SC. Leslie FM. The

dynamic effects of nicotine on the

developing brain. Pharmacol Then 2009;

122(21:125-139

42. Schraufnagel DE. Electronic cigarettes:

vulnerability of youth. Pediatr Allergy

Immunol Pulmonol. 2015;28(1):2-8

43. Pentz MA, Shin H. Riggs N. Unger JB.

Collison KL, Chou CP. Parent, peer, and

executive function relationships to early

adolescent e-cigarette use: a substance

use pathway? Addict Behav. 2015;42:

73-78

44. Kandel ER. Kandel DB. Shattuck Lecture. A

molecular basis for nicotine as

a gateway drug. N EngI J Med. 2014;

371(10):932-943

45. Chatham-Stephens K. Law R, Taylor E,

et al; Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention (CDC). Notes from the field:

calls to poison centers for exposures to

electronic cigarettes—United States.

September 2010-February 2014. MMWR

Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2014;83(13):

292-293

48. Mayer B. How much nicotine kills

a human? Tracing back the generally

accepted lethal dose to dubious self-

experiments in the nineteenth century.

Arch Toxicol. 2014;88(1):5-7

47. Vakkalanka JP. Hardison LS Jr. Holstege

CP. Epidemiological trends in electronic

cigarette exposures reported to U.S.

Poison Centers, din Toxicoi (Phila). 2014;

52(5):542-548

48. Hughes C. Tot's fatal liquid nicotine

ingestion brings call for action. Times

Union. December 11. 2014. Available at:

www.timesunion.eom/local/article/Cops-

Boy-died-after-swallowing-liquid-nicotine-

5948066.php. Accessed July 8. 2015

49. US Fire Administration. Electronic

Cigarette Fires and Explosions.
Washington. DC: Federal Emergency

Management Agency, US Department of
Homeland Security; October 2014.

Available at: https://www.usfa.fema.gov/
downloads/pdf/publications/electronic_

cigarettes.pdf. Accessed July 8. 2015

50. Bullen C. Howe C, Laugesen M, et al.

Electronic cigarettes for smoking

PEDIATRICS Volume 136, number 5. November 2015
Downloaded from by guest on July 6, 2016

1025



quickly as the increase in youth ENDS

use. Research funding should also

focus on public health Initiatives,

including outcomes evaluations.

CONCLUSIONS

ENDS use is rapidly increasing among

youth and, according to the most
recent data, ENDS are the most

common tobacco product used among

youth. ENDS use has the potential to

addict youth to nicotine. There are

potential health harms to nonusers of

ENDS because of its toxicants,

including nicotine, carcinogens, and

metal particles found in the

secondhand and thirdhand aerosol.

There has been an increase in

unintentional exposures of children

with acute nicotine poisoning from

a concentrated nicotine-containing

ENDS solution, with at least 1 child

death from unintentional ingestion of

an ENDS solution.

The increasing use of ENDS among
youth threatens 5 decades of public

health gains in successfully

deglamorizing, restricting, and

decreasing the use of tobacco

products. Health claims of ENDS as

smoking cessation aids are currently

unsupported by scientific evidence.

There is a crucial need for effective

local, state, and federal regulation to
protect children and youth from

ENDS use and exposure to ENDS

secondhand and thirdhand aerosol

and concentrated nicotine solution.

LEAD AUTHORS

Susan C, Walley, MD, FAAP

Brian P. Jenssen, MD, FAAP

PROVISIONAL SECTION ON TOBACCO

CONTROL, 2014-2015

Ruth A. Etzel. MD, PhO. FAAP, Co-chairperson

Karen M, Wilson. MD, MPH, FAAP. Co-chairperson

Sophie J. Balk. MD, FAAP

Harold J. Farber. MD. MSPH. FAAP

Judith A. Groner, MD, FAAP

John E. Moore. MD, FAAP

STAFF

Janet Brishke, MPH

ABBREVIATIONS

AAP: American Academy of

Pediatrics

e-cigarettes: electronic cigarettes

ENDS: electronic nicotine delivery

systems

FDA: US Food and Drug

Administration

NYTS; National Youth Tobacco

Survey

REFERENCES

1. Cheng T. Chemical evaluation of

electronic cigarettes. Tob Control. 2014;

23(suppl 2):ii11-iil7

2- Brown CJ. Cheng JM. Electronic

cigarettes: product characterisation and

design considerations. Tob Control. 2014;

23(supp! 2):ii4-il10

3. Zhu SH, Sun JY. Bonnevie E, et al. Four

hundred and sixty brands of e-cigarettes

and counting: implications for product

regulation. Tob Control. 2014;23(suppl 3):

iii3-iii9

4. Grana R, Benowitz N, Glantz SA.

E-cigarettes: a scientific review.

Circulation. 2014;129(I9):1972-1986

5. Collaco JM, Drummond MB, McGrath-

Morrow SA. Electronic cigarette use and

exposure In the pediatric population.

JAMA Pediatr. 2015;169(2):177-182

6. Arrazola RA, Neff Ld. Kennedy SM. Holder-

Hayes E, Jones CD; Centers for Disease

Control and Prevention (CDC). Tobacco

use among middle and high school

students—United States. 2013. MMWR

Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2014;83(45):

1021-1026

7. Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention (CDC). Notes from the field:

electronic cigarette use among middle

and high school students—United

States. 2011-2012. MMWR Morb Mortal

Wkly Rep. 2013;62(35);729-730

8. Arrazola RA. Singh T, Corey CG. et al;

Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention (CDC). Tobacco use among

middle and high school students—

United States, 2011-2014. MMWR Morb

Mortal Wkly Rep 2015;64(14):381-385

9. Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention (COG). Tobacco product use

among middle and high school

students—United States. 2011 and 2012.

MMWR Morb Mortal Wkly Rep. 2013;

62{45);893-897

10. Wills TA, Knight R, Williams RJ. Pagano I,

Sargent JD. Risk factors for exclusive

e-cigarette use and dual e-cigarette use

and tobacco use in adolescents.

Pediatrics. 2015;135(1). Available at;

www.pediatrics.org/cgi/content/full/135/

1/e43

11. Johnston LD, O'Malley PM, Miech RA.

Bachman JG, Schulenberg JE. Monitoring

the Future: National Survey Results on

Drug Use: 1975-2014. Overview, Key

Findings on Adolescent Drug Use. Ann

Arbor. Ml: Institute for Social Research.

The University of Michigan; 2015.

Available at: www.monitoringthefuture.

org/pubs/monographs/mtf-

overview2014.pdf. Accessed July 8, 2015

12. Lippert AM. Do adolescent smokers use

e-cigarettes to help them quit? The

soclodemographic correlates and

cessation motivations of US adolescent

e-cigarette use. Am J Health Promot.

2015;29(6):374-379

13. King BA. Patel R, Nguyen KH. Dube SR.

Trends in awareness and use of

electronic cigarettes among US adults.

2010-2013. Nicotine Tob Res. 2015:17(2):

219-227

14. McMillen RC. Gottlieb MA. Shaefer RMW.

Wlnickoff JP, Klein JD. Trends in

electronic cigarette use among US

adults: use is increasing in both

smokers and nonsmokers. Nicotine Tob

Res 2015;17(10):1195-1202

15. Dutra LM, Glantz SA. Electronic cigarettes

and conventional cigarette use among

U.S. adolescents: a cross-sectional study.

JAMA Pediatr. 2014;168(7);610-617

16. National Center for Chronic Disease

Prevention and Health Promotion. Office

on Smoking and Health. Preventing

Tobacco Use Among Youth and Young

Adults: A Report of the Surgeon General.

Atlanta, GA; Centers for Disease Control

and Prevention; 2012. Available at: http://

pubmed.org/pubmed/?term=2012+

Surgeon-i-General%278+Report%E2%

80%94Preventing+Tobacco-»-Use+Among-»-

Youth+and+Young+Adults. Accessed July

8. 2015

17. Grana RA. Ling PM. "Smoking revolution":

a content analysis of electronic cigarette

retail websites. Am J Prev Med. 2014;

46(4):395-403

1024
Downloaded from by guest on July 6,2016

FROM THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS



b. Counsel parents and caregivers

about strategies to reduce expo

sure to ENDS aerosol, such as

instituting bans on ENDS use in

the home and car.

The best protection from exposure to

ENDS aerosol is for parents and

caregivers to not use ENDS. If that is

not possible, pediatricians should
recommend ENDS-free policies for

their home and car.

5. Pediatricians should be familiar

with symptoms of acute nicotine
poisoning and consider acute
nicotine poisoning from ENDS
solutions when treating a child with
symptoms consistent with acute
nicotine poisoning unexplained by
other etiologies.

Although most exposures will not

require treatment, medical

management of severe acute

nicotine ingestion is largely

symptomatic and supportive. If an

exposure occurs or there is concern

for exposure, the American

Association of Poison Control Centers

(1-800-222-1222) should be

contacted.

PUBLIC POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Reduce youth access to ENDS.

a. Ban the sale to and use of ENDS

for children and youth younger

than 21 years.

Banning the sale of ENDS to youth

younger than 21 years will decrease

youth access and the potential for

nicotine addiction. The AAP

recommends 21 years as the

minimum legal age of purchase for all

tobacco products.

b. Ban Internet sales of ENDS and

ENDS solutions.

Prohibition of Internet sales can help
regulate the ability to restrict the sale

of ENDS to youth. Internet sales of

ENDS and ENDS solutions can easily

be accessed by minors and used to

evade local tobacco control

regulations and taxes.

2. Reduce youth demand for ENDS.

a. Ban all flavors In ENDS.

Because flavors have been shown to

promote tobacco product use among

youth,^° flavoring chemicals,
including menthol, should be banned

in all ENDS products and solutions.

Flavoring chemicals attractive to

youth also have the potential to
increase risk of ingestion of the ENDS

solution by young children.

3. Ban advertising of ENDS In media/
Internet/polnt-of-sale settings that
can be viewed by youth.

ENDS advertisements in media,

including television, radio and print,
billboards, signage, Internet, and
point-of-sale (advertisements located

where ENDS are sold), promote

a positive image of ENDS and

encourage youth purchase and use of

ENDS. Any promotional activities that

can be accessed by children and/or

adolescents should be considered

advertising to youth.

4. Restrict depictions of ENDS and
ENDS use In movies, television

shows, and video games. Require
any movie, television show, or video
game with a depiction of ENDS or
ENDS use to have an adult rating.

Tobacco advertisements and

promotional efforts in media promote
youth tobacco initiation and

progression of smoking. Movies,

television shows, and video games

that depict ENDS or ENDS use should

be rated a minimum of R, TV-MA, or

Mature, respectively.

5. Protect youth from harms of
Involuntary ENDS, ENDS solution, and
ENDS aerosol exposure.

a. Protect youth and other non-

users from secondhand and

thirdhand aerosol exposure.

Because ENDS secondhand and

thirdhand aerosol contains nicotine

and other harmful toxicants, ENDS

use should be prohibited in all public

spaces. ENDS use should also be
prohibited in all locations where

children and youth are cared for.

learn, work, and play, including
workplaces, restaurants, health care

facilities, child care settings, schools,

dormitories, entertainment venues,

parks, athletic facilities, shopping
malls, restaurants, and leisure

facilities. School and college

campuses should prohibit the sale

and use of ENDS. Prohibitions of

ENDS should be included as part of

tobacco-free and smoke-free laws and

policies.

b. Protect children from un

intentional nicotine exposure

and poisonings.

i. The size of ENDS concentrated nic

otine solution prefilled cartridges

and containers should be limited to

amounts that would not be lethal to

a young child if ingested.

ii. ENDS solutions containing nicotine

should be dispensed in child-

resistant packaging.

iii. Child-resistant caps and other
packaging technologies should be
used to reduce the risk of expo

sure to children, including those

that restrict the rate and amount

of flow of liquid nicotine from

a containers®

c. Tax ENDS at the same rate as

conventional cigarettes.

Smokers, particularly youth, are very
price-sensitive®^; therefore, ENDS

and ENDS solutions should be taxed

at a rate sufficient to discourage their

use among youth and at a level not

less than state and federal taxes on

conventional cigarettes.

d. Apply funds for public health
initiatives to protect youth and
to study the health effects of

ENDS on users and nonusers.

Research demonstrating the adverse

health effects of conventional

cigarette use and exposure took
decades, while millions of youth and

adults died of tobacco-related

diseases. It is critical that the funding

and development of research on

ENDS, ranging from basic science of
exposure to effects on public health
and youth initiation, progress as

PEDIATRICS Volume 136, number 5, November 2015
Downloaded from by guest on July 6. 2016

1023



FEDERAL AND STATE ENDS REGULATION

Although federal regulations ban the

sale of conventional cigarettes to youth

aged <18 years, there are no current
federal age restrictions for purchasing

ENDS or ENDS products. The American

Academy of Pediatrics (AAP)
recommends 21 years as the minimum

age of purchase for all tobacco
products.5^ In April 2014, the FDA
issued a draft regulation that would

extend the agency's tobacco authority

to cover the sale and distribution of

ENDS and other tobacco products

similar to conventional cigarettes. Final

action on this regulation is pending.

Federal regulations on the content,

labeling, and packaging of ENDS and

ENDS solutions also do not exist as of

publication date. Federal legislation is

pending that would give the Consumer

Product Safety Commission the

authority to require child-resistant

packaging on liquid nicotine containers

sold to consumers. Some states have

already enacted legislation mandating

child-resistant packaging for ENDS

solutions.

The majority of states have enacted

laws prohibiting ENDS sales to minors,

and a few states have enacted

comprehensive laws that prohibit ENDS

use in private worksites, restaurants,

and bars.5** Updated information on
state ENDS laws is available by

contacting the AAP Division of State

Government Affairs at stgoviSaap.org.

There is no current federal regulation of

Internet ENDS sales. No federal laws

prevent ENDS and ENDS solutions from

being purchased by anyone over the
Internet, regardless of age.

RECOMMENDED ACTIONS FOR THE

PEDIATRICIAN

1. Pediatricians should screen for

ENDS use and provide prevention
counseling in clinical practice.

a. Screen children and adolescents,

parents, and caregivers for ENDS
use.

Screening for ENDS use and exposure

should be incorporated into the

screening for tobacco use.

Opportunities to screen include

health supervision visits and visits for

diseases that may be caused or

exacerbated by tobacco smoke

exposure, including ENDS

secondhand or thirdhand aerosol.

Because ENDS products vary widely

and are referred to by many names,

ask about use of these products by

using specific names (eg, electronic

cigarettes, e-cigarettes, e-cigs,

electronic cigars, electronic hookah,

e-hookah, hookah sticks, personal

vaporizers, mechanical mods, vape

pens, vaping devices). For more

information (including an ENDS fact

sheet), please refer to the AAP Julius

B. Richmond Center of Excellence

ENDS Web page (http://www2.aap.
org/richmondcenter/ENDS.html).

b. Counsel children and adoles

cents about the harms of ENDS

and the importance of remaining

a nonuser of ENDS and all

nicotine-containing products.

As part of tobacco use prevention

counseling, pediatricians should

include prevention counseling about

the known hazards of ENDS and the

importance of not initiating use of any
nicotine-containing product.

Personally relevant messages may

include the severity and rapid

development of nicotine addiction

and health effects from ENDS use,

lack of regulation of ENDS products

and solutions, and the contaminants

in the products.

2. ENDS use should not be

recommended as a treatment

product for tobacco dependence.

No current evidence supports the

efficacy or safety of ENDS as

a tobacco dependence treatment

product. Tobacco-dependent parents,

caregivers. and adolescents should be
offered behavioral counseling and
support and should be educated on,

offered, and/or referred to evidence-
based, FDA-approved, tobacco

dependence treatment medications as
appropriate for the individual's

severity of tobacco dependence and

readiness to quiL^^

3. Parents, caregivers, and
adolescents who use ENDS should be

offered or referred for tobacco

cessation counseling and FDA-
approved tobacco dependence
pharmacotheraples appropriate to
their level of addiction and

readiness to change.

For further information on tobacco

cessation counseling and resources

for adults and youth, please refer to

the following:

• Clinical Practice Policy to Protect

Children From Tobacco, Nicotine,

and Tobacco Smoke^^

• Treating Tobacco Use and De

pendence (http://www.ahrq.gov/
professionals/clinicians-providers/
guidelines-recommendations/
tobacco/index.html)

• Clinical Effort Against Secondhand

Smoke Exposure (http://www2.
massgeneral.org/ceasetobacco/)

• American College of Chest Physi

cians Tobacco Dependence

Treatment ToolKit (http://

tobaccodependence.chestnet.org/)

4. Pediatricians should recommend

to ENDS users that children should

avoid contact with ENDS and ENDS

solutions as well as secondhand and

thirdhand aerosol exposure.

a. Counsel parents and caregivers
that ENDS and ENDS solutions

should be stored in child-

resistant packaging and out of

the reach of children.

Although some states have enacted
legislation mandating child-

resistant packaging, no current

federal regulations exist for child-

resistant packaging for ENDS

and ENDS solutions. Although

counseling should be targeted to
prevention of ENDS use, if there
are household users of ENDS,

pediatricians should counsel

parents and caregivers about child-
resistant packaging, handling, and
storage.

1022
Downloaded from by guest on July 6, 2016

FROM THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS



In laboratory studies, neonatal mice

exposed to the aerosol from

a nicotine-containing ENDS solution

had detectable levels of plasma

cotinine, a metabolite of nicotine.^^

The mice exposed to the ENDS

solution containing nicotine had

decreased weight gain and impaired

postnatal lung growth compared with

mice exposed to room air. ENDS

solutions have also been shown to be

cytotoxic to human embryonic stem

cells.^° These studies raise concern

for harm from in utero exposure and
neonatal exposure to nicotine-

containing ENDS solution.

THE EFFECTS OF NICOTINE ON THE

DEVELOPING BRAIN

Nicotine is highly addictive and is the

primary psychoactive component

causing addiction in tobacco

products.^^ Nicotine has neurotoxic
effects on the developing brain.'*^ '*^^

early adolescence, development of

executive function and neurocognitive

processes in the brain has not fully

matured. Adolescents are more likely

to engage in experimentation with

substances such as cigarettes, and they

are also physiologically more

vulnerable to addiction.^^ Particularly
in adolescence, nicotine also has an

effect on the brain as a "gateway" drug

for cocaine and otiier illicit drugs.^

UNINTENTIONAL ENDS EXPOSURE AND

TOXICITY

Nicotine is derived from the tobacco

plant and, in addition to being highly
addictive, is toxic to humans.^s

Nicotine is well absorbed from the

respiratory tract, mucosal surfaces,

skin, and intestines; thus, nicotine

exposure can occur from inhaling,
ingesting, or coming in physical

contact with a nicotine-containing

ENDS solution.2S-45 Although
symptoms of acute nicotine toxicity

are generally mild and resolve within

12 hours with no treatment, large
exposures can be fatal.*^^ Symptoms
of acute nicotine toxicity are similar

to those in a nicotine-naive user and

include fine tremor, nausea,

tachycardia, and elevated blood
pressure.2s Severe poisonings

generally have a biphasic reaction.

Early symptoms occur within the first

hour of exposure and are

characterized by cholinergic excess

(increased salivation, vomiting, and

diaphoresis); other signs may include

cardiac dysrhythmias, seizures, and

muscle fasciculations. Late symptoms

of severe nicotine poisoning occur

between 0.5 and 4 hours and include

hypotension, bradycardia, lethargy,

and respiratory failure secondary to

neuromuscular blockade.

Severe nicotine toxicity in children has
been reported \vith nicotine doses as

low as 2 mg.25 ENDS solutions have
been advertised to contain as much as

36 mg/mL of nicotine (3.6%).^^ The
oral lethal dose of nicotine by body

weight that is estimated to kill 50% of

adults is projected at between 0.8 and

13 mg/kg.2S.46 Using the mid-range

estimate (6 mg/kg) of a lethal dose of

nicotine, an ingestion of the contents of

2 mL (<0.5 teaspoon) of an ENDS

concentrated nicotine solution could be

fatal to the average 12-kg 20-month-

old child. There is significant risk of

pediatric morbidity and mortality with
the current unregulated packaging and

volume of nicotine concentrations

available in ENDS solutions.

There has been an increase in

unintentional exposures and

poisonings from ENDS in the United

States, including inhalations, eye and

skin exposures, and ingestions. Calls
to poison control centers for ENDS

exposures increased from 1 exposure

call per month in September 2010 to

215 calls in February 2014. The

majority of ENDS exposures were

among children 0 to 5 years of age,

and 57.8% of ENDS exposures

produced adverse health effects, most

commonly vomiting, nausea, and eye

irritation.'^^-'^^ As of publication date,

there has been 1 reported child death

in the United States from ingestion of

a nicotine-containing ENDS

solution.'*® There has also been 1

adult death in the United States from

an intentional injection of a nicotine-

containing ENDS solution."*"^ In
addition, the lithium-ion batteries

used in ENDS have reportedly caused
explosions and fires, most commonly

while the battery is charging. The US

Fire Administration has cautioned

that, because of the shape and

construction of ENDS, battery failure

may be more likely to result in an
explosion that is propelled like

a "flaming rocket."^^

DATA ON USE OF ENDS FOR SMOKING

CESSATION

ENDS products have been promoted by

some manufacturers, either explicitly

or implicitly, as a smoking cessation

aid, although they are not approved by
the FDA as a smoking cessation

product®'*^ There have been limited
studies on its use as a medical device.

As of publication date, 1 randomized
controlled clinical trial has compared

nicotine-containing ENDS, nicotine-

replacement therapy (21-mg nicotine

patches), and placebo (no nicotine)

ENDS.®® Six-month cessation rates

were low overall, and no statistically

significant difference was found among
the 3 groups. Notable limitations to the
study included inadequate behavioral
support for all groups and poor

participant adherence with study

treatments, which was particularly low

in the nicotine patch group. Because
these results are from a single study,

they should be interpreted with

caution, considering the low overall
tobacco cessation rates in all 3 study

groups. An earlier meta-analysis of
tobacco dependence treatments (which

did not include ENDS) found that the

nicotine patch was effective for the

treatment of tobacco dependence, with

cessation rates of 23% with the

nicotine patch alone.®* Other

population-based studies have found

no association between ENDS use and

successful cessation of conventional

cigarette use.'*-®^ Overall, there is
insufficient evidence to recommend the

use of ENDS for smoking cessation.

PEDIATRICS Volume 13S, number 5, November 2015
Downloaded from by guest on July 6. 2016

1021



million in 2012, with the majority

spent on magazine and television

advertisements.!® Although tobacco

advertisements on television have

been legally banned since 1971

because of the Public Health Cigarette

Smoking Act, there are no current
regulations in place limiting ENDS

advertisements.!® Although the

current generation of children and

adolescents had not previously been

exposed to tobacco advertisements

on television, youth exposure to
television advertisements for ENDS

increased by 256% from 2011 to
2013.20 In 2013, 80% of US youth

aged 12 to 17 years were exposed to

an average of 13 ENDS

advertisements over the 1-year

period. Driven in part by the

significant increase in marketing and

promotion, ENDS sales represented

a billion-dollar industry in 2013, with

some forecasters predicting they will

eventually surpass sales for

conventional cigarettes.2!

ENDS SOLUTION COMPONENTS

The solutions used in ENDS products

(often referred to as e-liquid or
e-|uice] can be purchased in
prepackaged cartridges or by volume

to fill a refillable cartridge. ENDS
solutions are also available through
Internet vendors, in stores, and places

where ENDS products are sold. In

addition to concentrated nicotine,

components of the ENDS solutions

generally include flavoring chemicals

and carrier solvents, such as

propylene glycol and glycerol.!
Currently, there are no federal quality

standards to ensure the accuracy of

ENDS solution constituents as

advertised or labeled. The refillable

cartridges allow the user to deliver

other psychoactive substances,

including marijuana.^

In addition to nicotine, numerous

toxicants and carcinogens harmful to

human health have been found in

ENDS solutions, including aldehydes,
tobacco-specific nitrosamines, metals,

tobacco alkaloids, and polycyclic

aromatic hydrocarbons.!'22.23 These
quantitative and qualitative studies

illustrate that there are additional

components in ENDS solutions that

are unknown to users.

Nicotine is the major psychoactive

component of an ENDS solution.!

a study of 35 ENDS cartridges and

refill solutions, there were substantial

discrepancies (as much as 89%)

between the label and the actual

nicotine content.24 The reported

nicotine concentration in ENDS

solutions ranges from 0 to 36 mg/mL

with cartridges that vary in size.S'!^
In comparison, a single conventional

cigarette contains from 10 to 30 mg
of nicotine, although the absorbed

nicotine yield for a user is far less,

from 0.05 to 3 mg per cigarette.25.26
The user's actual nicotine exposure is

affected by many factors, including

the delivery system, nicotine

pharmacokinetics, and individual

consumption behavior.27.28

More than 7760 unique flavors of

ENDS solutions are advertised, the

majority of which are confectionary in

nature and appealing to children.® ̂ ^
Popular options include fruit, candy,

and dessert flavors such as "Belgian

waffle" and chocolate.^.i^ The most

commonly offered flavors are tobacco

and menthol, which are offered by

93% and 92%, respectively, of ENDS

brands.® Because cigarettes with candy

and fruit flavoring encourage youth

experimentation, regular use, and
addiction,®® flavorings (other than

menthol) have been banned in

conventional cigarettes since the

Family Smoking Prevention and

Tobacco Control Act of 2009. Although

the flavoring chemicals used in ENDS

solutions have been cited as "food

grade" and "generally recognized as

safe," under FDA guidelines, this

certification relates only to ingestion,

not inhalation.2® A study of ENDS

solutions found that many of the

flavoring chemicals contain aldehydes

(known respiratory irritants) in

sufficient concentrations to be of

toxicological concern.®®

The carrier solvents propylene glycol

and vegetable glycerin (glycerol) are
used in ENDS solutions to produce an

aerosol that, when heated, simulates

conventional cigarette smoke.!

Although these carrier solvents are
used in other settings, insufficient

data exist on the health effects of

repeated long-term inhalation and
exposure to these solvents.®!

ENDS SECONDHAND AND THIRDHAND

AEROSOL

The aerosol generated by ENDS is

inhaled and then exhaled by the user,

and some of the generated aerosol may

be directly discharged into the
surrounding environment. This

aerosol, also referred to as secondhand

aerosol or secondhand vapor, can be

inhaled by bystanders in a manner

similar to secondhand cigarette smoke.

Although ENDS advertisers often claim
the secondhand aerosol is "harmless

water vapor," these claims are false:

known harmful toxicants and

carcinogens have been found in ENDS
emissions.*! These include polycyclic

aromatic hydrocarbons®® as well as
nicotine, volatile organic compounds,

ultrafine particles, and particulate
matter.®®-®'! Metal and silicate

particles, some of which occur at

higher levels than in conventional
cigarettes, have also been detected in
ENDS aerosol.®®'®^

Thirdhand aerosol, as with thirdhand

smoke, is the residual aerosol that

remains on surfaces and in dust after

ENDS use; this residual may react

with oxidants in the environment to

yield secondary pollutants or be
reemitted into the gas phase.®®
Because nicotine on surfaces has

been shown to be increased after

ENDS use,®® thirdhand aerosol is

another potentially harmful

unintentional source of nicotine

exposure for youth. ENDS use

exposes nonusers, including at-risk
populations such as children and
pregnant women, to nicotine and
other harmful toxicants from

secondhand and thirdhand aerosol.

1020
Downloaded from by guest on July 6, 2016

FROM THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS



flavoring chemicals, and carrier

solvents such as propylene glycol and

vegetable glycerin [glycerol) for

inhalation by the user. Wide

variability exists in ENDS

terminology, product design, and

engineering. For the purposes of the

current policy statement, the term

ENDS encompasses devices that are

typically battery operated and

produce emissions for inhalation.

Alternate names for these products
include electronic cigarettes,

e-cigarettes, e-cigs, electronic cigars,

electronic hookah, e-hookah, hookah

sticks, personal vaporizers,
mechanical mods, vape pens, and

vaping devices.

Although commonly referred to as

a vapor, the emission from ENDS is

most accurately referred to as an

aerosol, which is a suspension of fine

particles in a gas.^ Despite variations

in terminology, ENDS products

generally have several common

components that include a flow

sensor, aerosol generator, battery, and

solution storage area.^ When a user

draws a breath (or "vapes") from

the device, a flow sensor detects the

change in pressure and activates the

aerosol generator. The generator

draws the solution from the storage

area and heats and/or mechanically

disperses the solution, creating an

aerosol. This aerosol is inhaled by the

user, who then exhales it. Nonusers

can be exposed to the emissions both

from the aerosol that is exhaled as

well as from the aerosol that is

generated from the device. Some

ENDS products have a light-emitting
diode that simulates the lit end of

a conventional cigarette.

There are more than 460 different

brands of ENDS, which vary

considerably in price, quality, and

design.^ '* ENDS can be purchased in
various retail outlets, including

vendors that sell tobacco, "vape"
shops, mall kiosks, gas stations,

convenience stores, grocery stores,

and pharmacies, as well as through

Internet vendors. ENDS can be

disposable or reusable; the reusable

ENDS products have a rechargeable

battery.*^ The ENDS solution storage

containers also vary widely, ranging

from prefilled cartridges to tank-style,

large refillable cartridges.'^-s Although
many of the early "first-generation"

ENDS were designed to resemble

conventional cigarettes, newer ENDS

models largely do not and may

resemble other common objects such

as a pen or flashlight.

EPIDEMIOLOGY OF YOUTH ENDS USE

ENDS use has increased dramatically

among youth. The National Youth

Tobacco Survey (NYTS) began

surveying ENDS use in 2011, asking

questions only about e-cigarettes.

Ever use (defined by the NYTS as
having ever tried an e-cigarette)

among middle school students

increased from 1.4% in 2011 to 3% in

2013.®'^ Current use (defined by the
NYTS as use of an e-cigarette at least

1 day in the past 30 days) among

middle school students was 0.6% in

2011 and increased to 3.9% in 2014,

a 650% increase.^-® Among high

school students, ever use increased

from 4.7% in 2011 to 11.9% in 2013,

and current use increased from 1.5%

in 2011 to 13.4% in 2014, an 890%

increase.®-® Other surveys of high

school students have found higher

current use at 17% to 18%, with ever

use as high as 29%.i0'ii The 2014
NYTS and Monitoring the Future

survey both documented for the first
time that more teenagers used

e-cigarettes in the past 30 days than
any other tobacco products, including

conventional cigarettes.®!^ ENDS use
has been documented as highest

among male subjects, non-Hispanic

white youth, and Hispanic youth.®'!^

A 2013 survey of high school

students found that e-cigarette-only

users had fewer social and behavioral

risk factors than conventional

cigarette users, raising concern that

ENDS are attracting youth who may

not otherwise have used tobacco

products.!® In addition, high levels of

dual use of ENDS and conventional

cigarettes have been noted in both

adults!®-!'! and youth.®'®-!®-!^'!®
Among youth, self-reported

e-cigarette use was also associated

with higher odds of ever or current

conventional cigarette smoking.!®

Compared with nonusers, youth who

used e-cigarettes perceived them as
healthier than cigarettes!®; however,
youth using e-cigarettes were less
likely to achieve abstinence from

conventional cigarettes.!®

Youth exposure to ENDS secondhand
and thirdhand aerosol has also

potentially increased with the

increase in adult ENDS use. The

percentage of e-cigarette ever use in

adults rose from 3.3% in 2010 to

8.5% in 2013, and current use

increased from 1% in 2010 to 2.6% in

2013.!® Adult conventional cigarette

smokers exhibited the largest growth
in ever use of ENDS, increasing from

9.8% in 2010 to 36.5% in 2013.

ENDS MARKETING AND SALES

The increasing awareness, sales, and

use of ENDS is being fueled by the

marketing and promotion of ENDS in

the media, including television, movies,

video games, social media, the Internet,
radio and print media, billboards, and

point-of-sale advertising, as well as by

celebrity role models. Advertisements

and promotional efforts in broadcast

media have been shown to promote

youtii initiation and progression of
tobacco use.!® ENDS companies have

marketed their products with claims of
being "healthier" and "safer" than

conventional cigarettes; these claims
have not been scientifically

validated.®-!'' xhere are also

unsubstantiated claims that ENDS can

be used to "smoke anywhere" and both
explicit and implicit claims that ENDS

are smoking cessation aids (currently

unapproved by the US Food and Drug
Administration [FDA]}.

Among all media outlets, ENDS

advertising expenditures increased

from $6.4 million in 2011 to $18.3

PEDIATRICS Volume 136, number 5, November 2015
Downloaded from by gue.si on July 6, 2016

1019



POLICY STATEMENT

American Academy
of Pediatrics

DEDICATED TO THE HEALTH OF ALL CHILDREN"

Organizational Principles to Guide and Define the Child Health
Care System and/or Improve the Health of all Children

Electronic Nicotine Delivery Systems
SECTION ON TOBACCO CONTROL

abstract

This document is copyrighted and is property of the American
Academy of Pediatrics and Its Board ofDirectors. All authors have filed

conflict of interest statements with the American Academy of

Pediatrics. Any conflicts have been resolved through a process
approved by the Board of Directors. The American Academy of

Pediatrics has neither solicited nor accepted any commercial

involvement in the development of the content of this publication.

The guidance m this statement does not indicate an exclusive course

of treatment or serve as a standard of medical care. Variations, taking
into account individual circumstances, may be appropriate

American Academy of Pediatrics Federal advocacy efforts should be

coordinated with the AAP Department of Federal Affairs in Washington,
DC. and with AAP chapters on state advocacy efforts to protect

children from the harmful effects of tobacco use and secondhand

smoke exposure.

All policy statements from the American Academy of Pediatrics

automatically expire 5 years after publication unless reaffirmed,

revised, or retired at or before that time.

www.pediatncs.org/cgi/cloi/10.1542/ped5201S-3222

DOJ: 10.1S42/pedS.2015-3222

PHlfATRICS (ISSN Numbers: Print 0031-4005; Online. 10S8-4275).

Copyright © 2015 by the American Academy of Pediatrics

Electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS) are rapidly growing in popularity

among youth. ENDS are handheld devices that produce an aerosolized mixture from

a solution typically containing concentrated nicotine, flavoring chemicals, and

propylene glycol to be Inhaled by the user. ENDS are marketed under a variety of

names, most commonly electronic cigarettes and e-cigarettes. In 2014, more youth

reported using ENDS than any other tobacco product. ENDS pose health risks to
both users and nonusers. Nicotine, the major psychoactive ingredient in ENDS

solutions, Is both highly addictive and toxic. In addition to nicotine, other toxicants,

carcinogens, and metal particles have been detected in solutions and aerosols of

ENDS. Nonusers are involuntarily exposed to the emissions of these devices with

secondhand and thirdhand aerosol. The concentrated and often flavored nicotine

in ENDS solutions poses a poisoning risk for young children. Reports of acute

nicotine toxicity from US poison control centers have been increasing, with at least

1 child death reported from unintentional exposure to a nicotine-containing ENDS

solution. With flavors, design, and marketing that appeal to youth, ENDS threaten to

renormalize and glamorize nicotine and tobacco product use. There is a critical

need for ENDS regulation, legislative action, and counter promotion to protect

youth. ENDS have the potential to addict a new generation of youth to nicotine and

reverse more than 50 years of progress in tobacco control.

DEFINITIONS

• Secondhand aerosol: emissions from electronic nicotine delivery systems

(ENDS) that are discharged into the surrounding environment with ENDS
use, both directly from the ENDS and exhaled from the lungs of the user.

• Thirdhand aerosol: ENDS emissions that remain on surfaces and in dust

after ENDS use, which can be reemitted into the gas phase or react with
oxidants in the environment to yield secondary pollutants.

• ENDS alternate names: electronic cigarettes, e-cigarettes, e-cigs, elec
tronic cigars, e-cigars, electronic hookah, e-hookah, hookah sticks, per
sonal vaporizers, mechanical mods, vape pens, and vaping devices.

BACKGROUND

ENDS, including electronic cigarettes (e-cigarettes), are handheld devices
that produce an aerosol from a solution typically containing nicotine.

FROM THE AMERICAN ACADEMY OF PEDIATRICS
pleaded from by guesi on July 6.2016

PEDIATRICS Volume 13B, number 5. November 2015



City of Mountain Brook

Attention: Sam Gaston

56 Church Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

July 6, 2016

Hello Mr. Gaston,

In follow up to our meeting on June 24*^ 2016,1 would like to express my support for the proposed

Smoke Free Model Ordinance In Mountain Brook. Dr. Kevin Alexander will present the ordinance to the

council for review on Monday night, July 11*^. I regret that I will not be able to attend this meeting.

On Monday, It Is my understanding that Dale Wisely will discuss PRIDE survey results showing that our

high school children In Mountain Brook are above the national average on reported smoking of

cigarettes. They also report seeing little risk In electronic cigarette use for vaping tobacco products. We

have our job cut out for us In educating families on the harmful effects of smoking traditional cigarettes,

secondhand smoke exposure, smokeless tobacco and e-cigarette use. Also, Important to note, while e-

clgarettes do not contain smoke, they DO expose others to secondhand emissions.

Increasing popularity and "false" advertising continue In the sale and recreational use of vaping

products. I would suggest the council discuss options for zoning that would prohibit vape shops and

hookah bars/lounges from purchasing/renting retail space within Mountain Brook city limits. I know

Homewood has zoning restrictions for such establishments. A vape shop Is a retail outlet specializing In

the selling of e-clgarette products. According to the FDA, e-clgarettes are devices that allow users to

Inhale an aerosol (vapor) containing nicotine and other harmful chemicals. According to the American

Cancer Society, hookah Is a flavored tobacco. It Is smoked out of a 'hookah' water pipe. A hookah

bar/lounge allows patrons to share a communal hookah. The cancer society says although many people

believe smoking hookah Is a safe alternative to cigarette tobacco. It Is not. (see attached)

As a pedlatric health care provider and mother of three, I know that I do not want my husband, family or

friends to be exposed unnecessarily to the health risks associated with tobacco products or the

chemicals known to be found In liquid vaping products. I believe the best education we can do at this

time Is to take a bold stand to strengthen Mountain Brook's smoking ordinance as outlined In the smoke

free proposal. And, If the council will consider It, put Into place a zoning requirement to keep vaping

businesses out of Mountain Brook, as they certainly do not promote a healthy community environment.

Sincerely,

Lesne Brown

133 Cherry Street

Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213

205 527 2930; elbrownl33(5)gmall.com



m

Cancer Action
Network-

Waterpipes (Hookahs)

Not a safe alternative to cigarettes

What is Hookah?

Hookah smoking, long prevalent in the Far and Middle East,
involves burning tobacco, passing it through a water-filled
bowl and inhaling the smoke through a long hose.

Waterpipes are known by a variety of names, including:
hookah, shisha, boory, goza, narghile, nargile, arghile, and
bubble bubble.

Smoking waterpipes, as

well as breathing
secondhand smoke from

waterpipes, is at least as
harmful as exposure to

cigarette smoke.

Increasingly, the most common form of tobacco smoked in a waterpipe is called shisha or
Maassel, which is sweetened with such flavors as apple, mint, cherry, or cappuccino.

Who Uses Hookah?

Waterpipes are most common in areas of China, India, Pakistan, and the Eastern
Mediterranean Region. However, in the last several years hookah has been gaining in
popularity in the United States as well, particularly among college students'" ̂ and young

4 5 6
adults.

•  Hookah smoking typically takes place in groups. Hookah bars have been opening with
increasing frequency in recent years across the U.S., particularly in college towns and
urban areas. The American Lung Association estimated that there were approximately
200-300 hookah bars in the U.S. in 2006,^ and that number has likely increased since.
More than one in five high school students (20.9%) in one study first learned about
hookah by seeing a hookah bar in their community.^

• Many hookah smokers have also tried or currently use cigarettes or other tobacco
products.^

•  Among high school seniors, 17% have smoked a hookah in the past year.'^

What are the Health Effects of Exposure to Hooknii Smoke?

• While many hookah smokers may be unaware of its health risks or believe that It Is
less harmful or addictive than cigarette smoking,'^ this is not the case.
Smoking waterpipes, as well as breathing secondhand smoke from waterpipes, is at least

19
as harmful as exposure to cigarette smoke.

Waterpipe smoke, like cigarette smoke, contains significant amounts of cancer
causing ingredients, such as arsenic, cobalt, chromium and lead. In addition,
smoke from a waterpipe contains carbon monoxide (CO) in amounts equal to or greater
than smoke from cigarettes."" A review and meta-analysis of existing research
found that waterpipe smoking has the same negative effect on lung function as cigarette
smoking."^

March 2012



Waterpipe smokers can be exposed to sufficient doses of nicotine to lead to
addiction.^^ A meta-analysis of four studies assessing biomarkers of exposure to
nicotine and tobacco smoke among hookah smokers found that using a waterpipe was
equivalent to smoking 2-10 cigarettes per day.^® Waterpipe smoke produces similarly
increased blood nicotine levels and increases in heart rate as cigarette use.^'

Smokers of waterpipes may be exposed to even more smoke than cigarette
smokers^^ because waterpipe smoking sessions last from 20-80 minutes during which a
smoker may inhale as much smoke as that from 100 or more cigarettes.^'* One study
found that during a typical one-hour waterpipe use session a waterpipe smoker likely
generates ambient carcinogens and toxicants equivalent to that of 2-10 cigarette
smokers.^^

Unlike cigarettes, waterpipe smoke may also contain charcoal or wood cinder
combustion products from the heat source used to bum the tobacco, increasing the
cancer- and heart-disease causing agents in the smoke

36

• Waterpipe smoke is associated with increased risk of disease including cancer, heart
disease, lung disease, and adverse effects during pregnancy In addition, the sharing of a
waterpipe mouthpiece increases the user's risk for communicable diseases.

• The World Health Organization (WHO) issued an advisory on waterpipe tobacco
smoking in 2005 addressing the health effects of waterpipe smoking and made several
key recommendations related to regulating hookah in a similar manner as other tobacco
products.^® This advisory remains in effect.

ACS CAN supports the regulation of all tobacco products and passage of strong smoke-free
laws to protect people from the harms of secondhand smoke from all tobacco products.
Hookah bars should not be exempt from smoke-free laws that prohibit smoking in public places,
including workplaces, restaurants, and bars.

ACS CAN also supports other policies focused on decreasing the use of hookah and other
tobacco products. Specifically:

•  Hookah tobacco should be taxed at an equivalent rate to cigarettes and other tobacco
products, using a price-based approach with a minimum tax;

•  Sales of hookah tobacco should be prohibited to minors under age 18;
• Waterpipe and hookah tobacco retailers and hookah bars should be subject to the same

licensing requirements as retailers of other tobacco products in the jurisdiction;
•  The Food and Drug Administration should assert its authority to regulate hookah tobacco

under the 2009 federal Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act;
•  Flavored hookah tobacco should be prohibited;
•  Questions about hookah use should be included on national and state-based surveys,

particularly those targeting youth and young adults, to obtain information about the
prevalence and patterns of hookah use that can be used to improve tobacco prevention
and cessation.

References

March 2012



' Fielder RL. Carey KB, and Carey MP. Prevalence, Frequency, and Initiation of Hookah Tobacco Smoking Among First-
Year Female College Students: A One-Year Longitudinal Study. Addictive Behaviors 2012; 37(2): 221-224.
^ Sutfin EL, McCoy TP, Reboussin BA, et al. Prevalence and Correlates of Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking by College
Students in North Carolina. Drug Alcohol Depend 2011; 115(1-2): 131-136.
^ Grekin ER and Ayna D. Argileh Use Among College Students in the United States: An Emerging Trend. J Stud Alcohol
Drugs 2008; 69(3):472-475.
* Martinasek MP, McDermott RJ, Martini L. Waterpipe (Hookah) Tobacco Smoking Among Youth. Curr ProbI Pediatr
Adolesc Health Care 2011; 41 (2): 34-57.
' Jamil H, Elsouhag D, et al. Sociodemographic Risk Indicators of Hookah Smoking Among White Americans: A Pilot
Study. Nicotine Tob Res 2010; 12(5): 525-529.
^ Aljarrah K, Ababneh ZQ, and Al-Delaimy WK. Perceptions of Hookah Smoking Harmfulness: Predictors and
Characteristics Among Current Hookah Users. Tob Indue Dis 2009; 5(1): 16.
^ American Lung Association. An Emerging Deadly Trend: Waterpipe Tobacco Use. Tobacco Policy Trend Alert. 2007.
Available at http:/Av\vw.lungusa2.org/embargo/slati/Trendalert_Waterpipes.pdf. Accessed January 18, 2012.
* Smith JR, Novotny TE, Edland SD, et al. Determinants of Hookali Use Among High School Students. Nicotine Tob Res
2011; 13(7): 565-572.
' Sterling KL and Mermelstein R. Examining Hookah Smoking Among a Cohort of Adolescent Ever Smokers. Nicotine &

Tobacco Research 2011 (epub ahead of print).
Smith JR, Edland SD, Novotny TE et al. Increasing Hookah Use in California. Am J Pub //ear/2011; 101(10): 1876-9.
" Braun RE, Classman T, Wohlvvend J. Hookah Use Among College Students from a Midwest University. J Community
Health 20 IP, epub ahead of print.
Smith, Novotny, et al, 2011.
Jordan HM and Delnevo CD. Emerging Tobacco Products: Hookah Use Among New Jersey Youth. Prev Med 20\0',

51(5): 394-396.
'■* Johnston LD, O'Malley PM, Bachman JG, Schulenberg JE. Monitoring the Future National Results on Adolescent
Drug Use: Overview of Key Findings, 2010. Ann Arbor (MI): The University of Michigan, Institute for Social
Research, 2011.

Wray RJ, Jupka K, Berman S, et al. Young Adults' Perceptions about Established and Emerging Tobacco Products:
Results from Eight Focus Groups. Nicotine fob Res 2011 (epub ahead of print).

Rankin KV. Hookah Smoking: A Popular Alternative to Cigarettes. Te.x Dent 7 2011; 128(5): 441-445.
" Smith, Novotny, et al, 2011.

Aljarrah et al, 2009.
" Maziak W, Ward KD, Afifi Soweid RA, Eissenberg T. Tobacco Smoking Using a Waterpipe: A Re-emerging Strain in
a Global Epidemic. Tobacco Control 2004, 13, 327-333.

Maziak et al, 2004.
Fromme H, Dietrich S, Heitmann D,et al. Indoor Air Contamination During a Waterpipe (Narghile) Smoking Session.

Food Chem Toxicol 2009; 47(7): 1636-1641.
Schubert J, Hahn J, Dettbam G, et al. Mainstream smoke of the waterpipe: does tliis environmental matrix reveal as

significant source of toxic compounds? Toxicology Letters 2011; 205(3):279-84.
" Jacob P, Raddaha AH, Dempsey D, et al. Nicotine, carbon monoxide, and carcinogen exposure after a single use of a
water pipe. Cancer Epidemiol Biomarkets Prev 2011; 20( 11 ):2345-53.

Bamett TE, Curbow BA, Soule EK, et al. Carbon Monoxide Levels Among Patrons of Hookah Cafes. Am J Prev Med
2011; 40(3): 324-328.

Singh S, Soumya M, Saini A, et al. Breath Carbon Monoxide Levels in Different Forms of Smoking. Indian J Chest Dis
Allied Sci 2011; 53( 1): 25-28.

Eissenberg T and Shihadeh A. Waterpipe Tobacco and Cigarette Smoking: Direct Comparison of Toxicant Exposure.
Am J Prev Med 2009; 37(6): 518-523.

Raad D, Gaddam S, Schunemann HJ, et al. Effects of Water-Pipe Smoking on Lung Function: A Systematic Review and
Meta-Analysis. Chest 10\ 1; 139(4): KA-llA.

WHO Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation. Advisory Note: Waterpipe Tobacco Smoking: Health Effects,
Research Needs and Recommended Actions by Regulators. World Health Organization, 2005. Accessed December 6,2005
at http:/Avww.who.int/tobacco/global_interaction/tobregAVaterpipe%20recommendation_Final.pdf.

Schubert et al, 2011.
Neergaard J, Singh P, Job J, and Montgomery S. Waterpipe Smoking and Nicotine Exposure: A Review of the Current

Evidence. Nicotine Tob Res 2007; 9(10): 987-994.
Jacob et al, 2011.
Eissenberg et al, 2009.
Eissenberg et al, 2009.
WHO Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation, 2005.

March 2012



Daher N, Saleh R, Jaroudi E, ct al. Comparison of Carcinogen, Carbon Monoxide, and Ultrafine Particle Emissions
From Narghile Walerpipe and Cigarette Smoking: Sidestream Smoke Measurements and Assessment of Second-Hand
Smoke Emission Factors. Atmos Environ 2010; 44(1): 8-14.
WHO Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation, 2005.
WHO Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation, 2005.
WHO Study Group on Tobacco Product Regulation, 2005.

March 2012



AN ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT THE USE OF WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATION DEVICES WHILE

OPERATING A MOTOR VEHICLE IN SCHOOL ZONES BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 7:30 A.M. AND 8:00 A.M.

AND BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 2:30 P.M. AND 3:30 P.M.

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows:

1. Provisions. It shall be unlawful for the driver of a motor vehicle in a School Zone to operate a

wireless telecommunication device between the hours of 7:30 A.M. and 8:00 A.M. and between

the hours of 2:30 P.M. and 3:30 P.M. Operating a Wireless telecommunication device shall

include engaging in a call; writing, sending, or reading text-based communications; accessing,

reading, or posting to a social network site or accessing or adding any information to the

wireless telecommunication device. The provisions of this Section shall only apply within a

school zone upon a public road or highway during posted hours when signs are located in a

visible manner in each direction that indicate the use of a hand-held wireless

telecommunication device is prohibited while operating a motor vehicle.

2. "Wireless telecommunication device" defined. "Wireless telecommunication device" means a

cellular telephone, a text- messaging device, a personal digital assistant, a stand-alone

computer, or any other substantially similar wireless device that is readily removable from the

vehicle and is used to write, send, or read text or data through manual input. A "wireless

telecommunication device" shall not include any device or component that is permanently

affixed to a motor vehicle. It does not include a hands-free wireless telephone, an electronic

communication device used hands-free, citizens band radios, citizens band radio hybrids,

commercial two-way radio communications devices, two-way radio transmitters or receivers

used by licensees of the Federal Communication Commission in the Amateur Radio Service, or

electronic communication devices with a push-to-talk function.

3. Violations.

(1) Violations of this ordinance shall constitute a moving violation.

(2) The first violation of the provisions of this ordinance shall be punishable for a fine of not

more than $XX.

(3) Each subsequent violation shall be punishable by a fine of not more than $XX.

(4) If a person is involved In a collision at the time of the violation, then the fine shall be

equal to double the amount of the standard fine imposed in this ordinance and the law

enforcement officer investigating the collision shall indicate on the written report that

the person was using a wireless telecommunication device at the time of the collision.

4. Exceptions: The provisions of this ordinance shall not apply to a person who uses a wireless

telecommunication device and does any of the following;

(1) Reports a traffic collision, medical emergency, or serious road hazard.

(2) Reports a situation in which the person believes his personal safety is in jeopardy.

(3) Reports or averts the perpetration or potential perpetration of a criminal act against the

driver or another person.



(4) Operates a wireless telecommunication device while the motor vehicle is lawfully

parked.

(5) Uses a wireless telecommunication device in an official capacity as an operator of an

authorized emergency vehicle.

5. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are

hereby expressly repealed.

6. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or

invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder

of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding.

7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption, publication as

provided by law, and the installation of appropriate traffic signage indicating that such turns are

prohibited.



Handheld Device Usage Statistics

School Period
Minutes

Observed

Using
Device

Usage

Per minute

Estimated

Sample

Device Use

Rate
Conflicts Distracted

Mountain Brook Morning 35 16 0,46 800 2.0% 0 5 (o.s'Sf.i

High School Afternoon 53 33 0.62 600 5.5% 0 2 (Q.3%1

Mountain Brook Morning 44 18 0.41 815 2.2% 0 3 f0.4%t

Junior High School Afternoon 49 18 0.37 630 2.9% 1 3 (0 5%!

Brookwood Forest Morning 30 9 0.30 450 2.0% 0 3 10.7%1

Elementary School Afternoon 53 21 0.40 275 7.6% 1 1 (0.4%I

Cherokee Bend Morning 32 4 0.13 120 3.3% 0 1 (0.8%1

Elementary School Afternoon 50 12 0.24 120 10.0% 0. 3 (7 S^,|

Crestline Morning 35 19 0.54 900 2.1% 1 3 tn

Elementary School Afternoon 30 50 1.67 675 7.4% 1 12(1,8%!

Mountain Brook Morning 28 9 0.32 120 7.5% 0 5 (1.8%)

Elementary School Afternoon 54 4 0.07 120 3.3% 0 0 (o.o%i

"Conflicts" were noted whenever a driver using a handheld device either took an action which may have

resulted In a crash or caused other drivers to take action which may have resulted in a crash

"Distracted" was noted when the driver was visibly texting or looking down at a handheld device

The chart below shows the national trend on handheld device usage from 2005 to 2014. The cells above

with RED entries denotes where the observation was above national average.

Figure 1

Driver Use of Electronic Devices, 2005-2014

6°;

5%-

1 I
^ V
3 «» OO

«> 10'

s -i

O "C

.E o &2'/o 62^'o

5.0% 4.y/» " 48% ' '52%"
4.6%""

4.3=0

O.T^o 0.6^'8 0.7% 1.0°B
0.6%

13% 1.5% 1.7%^
22^0

0.2% 0.4% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0.6% 0-6% 0.5% 0.4%

2005 20O6 2007

Hand-Held Cell Phone Use

2008 2009 2010

Visible Headset Cell Phone Use

2011 2012 2013 2014

- Visible Manipulation of Hand-Held Devices

Source: NHTSA "Traffic Safety Facts Research Note", September 2014

Skipper Consulting, Inc. May 18, 2016 Page 1



P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 Z
O
N
E

M
O
U
N
T
A
I
N
 B
R
O
O
K
 H
I
G
H
 S
C
H
O
O
L

7
:
3
0
-
8
:
0
0
 A
M

2
:
3
0
-
3
:
3
0
 P
M

-
x
f

7-
l^

k

• 
v
i
 

:>
J'

 •

/
•
 
.

:
/
/
 

■
'fm

,:

I

M



P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 Z
O
N
E
 

7-
30

-8
 0
0
 A
M

M
O
U
N
T
A
I
N
 B
R
O
O
K
 J
U
N
I
O
R
 H
I
G
H
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 

2:
30

-3
:3

0 
P
M

(L
oa

j
 M
 
w

M

I



< □-
o o
O CO
00 CO
I  I

o o
CO CO
•  ■ a tt

CN

O
0
1
O
CO

LU LJJ

O ^
. CO

lU
q:
o
LJ_

O
o

^ Q
o
oQ

LU
CO

CL O
o o
Qc:
CL CQ

W



< CL
o o
O CO

■  ■ ■ ■

00 CO
I  I

o o
CO CO

■  ■ ■ ■

N- (N

o
o
X
o
CO

<

o i
N yj

O LU
O Q
X z
O LU
CO CD

Q LU
LU LU

CO ̂
O O
Q_ q:
O LU
or: X
Q. o

■A

%iKv..

Ll k-\

IC;^v-
■\^, "



P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 S
C
H
O
O
L
 Z
O
N
E

C
R
E
S
T
L
I
N
E
 E
L
E
M
E
N
T
A
R
Y
 S
C
H
O
O
L

7
:
3
0
-
8
:
0
0
 A
M

2
:
3
0
-
3
:
3
0
 P
M

H^
Ay

?-
' 

c 
'J 

• 
e'

 
^r

r.
' 
j

i:

It

m

s

;;
ft
;

>
-

S[
P,
M 

;!
:.

i 
^

ry
i.r

>-
■■

-'■
■£

:.A
il



< CL
o o
O CO
a m m m

00 CO
I  I

o o
CO CO

m m ■ •

CM

O
o

O
LU CO

o
N

LU

LU

So
0
01
CD

O
CO

o z
LU ̂
CO <

2 o
CL ̂



< Q.

o
o
o
CO

00
1 1 :•• 'Z^-,
1

o
CO

1

o
CO

1^ csi

y-r^r:^.
..,^. ^r '^m-y
a ,;-.• V?; ■■:-;.;;:^.--.7-?^»^iJ!—?«V'-«'''-'' m.

>ffrLLtte2

1
1

r

'-H
1

. .-. • -'F^:; •• ir



SIGN ASSEMBLIES FOR THE

BEGINNING OF SCHOOL ZONES

WITH SPEED LIMIT CHANGE/ WITH SPEED LIMIT CHANGE
WITH NO SPEED LIMIT CHANGE NO ACTIVE DEVICES AND ACTIVE DEVICES

mmm
CELL

PHONE

ZONE

Sl-l
36"x3rj"

S4-3

24"x8"

S-SPECLVL

24"x30"

S4-1
24"xl0"

LMIT

S4-3

24"x8"

R2-1

24"x30"

CELL

PHONE

ZONE

S-SPECIAL

24"x30"

S4-1

24"xlO"

SIGN ASSEMBLY FOR THE

END OF SCHOOL ZONES

LMT

WHEN

FLASHNQ

PHONE

ZONE

S5-1

24"x48"

S-SPECIAL

24"x30"

SCHOOL
24"x30


	2016-Jul-11 Pre-Meeting Agenda
	1   Smoke free (model) ordinance
	 a  2005 City ordinance
	 b Homewood ordinance
	 c All In Mountain Brook
	2  Cell phone free zones



